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Cautionary Statement

Except for the historical financial information daimed herein, the matters discussed in this reparEorm 10-K (as well as documents
incorporated herein by reference) may be considéf@uvard-looking” statements within the meaning®éction 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the SecuEiieisange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forwarkidgastatements include declarations
regarding the intent, belief or current expectasaf Silicon Laboratories Inc. and its managemert may be signified by the words
“expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “believes” or similar language. You are cautioned that any suctvérd-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve a remolbrisks and uncertainties. Actual results codiffler materially from those indicated |
such forward-looking statements. Factors that caadse or contribute to such differences includséhdiscussed under “Risk Factors” and
elsewhere in this report. Silicon Laboratories tiéms any intention or obligation to update or rewiany forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events dreotvise.




Part |
Item 1. Business
General

Silicon Laboratories Inc. designs and develops petgry, analog-intensive, mixed-signal integrateduits (ICs) for a broad range of
applications. Mixed-signal ICs are electronic comgrats that convert real-world analog signals, sagchound and radio waves, into digital
signals that electronic products can process. Thieremixed-signal ICs are critical components lread range of applications in a variety of
markets, including communications, consumer, indistutomotive, medical and power management.

Our world-class, mixed-signal design ICs use steshdamplementary metal oxide semiconductor (CM@8hhology to dramatically
reduce the cost, size and system power requirernédsvices that our customers sell to their ene-gastomers. Our expertise in analog-
intensive, mixed-signal IC design in CMOS allowgtaisievelop new and innovative products that agaliiiintegrated, which simplifies our
customers’ designs and improves their time-to-ntarke

Industry Background

Personal computers and mobile handsets are exp®ctethain significant market drivers for semicoctdu consumption in the near
future. In wired communications, increased entegequipment spending and capital expendituregtwce providers combined with
broadband and Voice over Packet technology continwepresent growth areas in the communicationstket.

Recent growth in the market for ICs has been dw@ertomber of factors, including the growth of Imietrusage, development of new
communications technologies including mobile comioations and entertainment, availability of imprdv@mmunications services at lower
costs, broad deployment of optical networks andoteraccess requirements for corporate networks. démand has fueled tremendous gre
in the number of electronic devices. For examplenobile handset markets, the demand for wirelassigs and other wireless devices, suc
personal digital assistants (PDAS), has grown fiiead wireless services have become increasingpufar and affordable. In other markets,
demand has increased for a wide range of electproucts, including personal computers, cablesatellite set-top boxes, fax machines,
digital cameras, satellite radios and personalosi@eorders (PVRs). Consumers increasingly demagttbhcapacity connections at their
residences using cable modems or high speed DSP. dchnology, which enables voice traffic overada¢tworks, is emerging as a viable
alternative to traditional telephone networks. @eenand for greater and faster Internet access byetholds and businesses has increased the
need to significantly upgrade the communicatiorckbane to handle this traffic, increasing the nfeedmaller, faster and better performing
networking systems that route this traffic.

This intersection between the analog and the digitalds require numerous analog-intensive, mixighal circuits. Traditional designs
for electronic devices have used mixed-signal smistbuilt with numerous, complex discrete analod digital components. While these
traditional designs provide the required functidtgathey can be inefficient and inadequate for insmarkets where size, cost, power
consumption and performance are increasingly ingpogroduct differentiators. In order to improveittcompetitive position, electronic
device manufacturers need advanced misigdal ICs that reduce the number of discrete comapts and required board space to create sn
products with improved price/performance charasties. Additionally, these manufacturers requiregpammable ICs that can be reconfigured
to comply with numerous and constantly evolvingingational electronic standards without altering fimdamental design of a product.




Manufacturers of electronic devices face accelegaime-to-market demands and must adapt to ewpividustry standards and new
technologies. Because analog-intensive, misigdal IC design expertise is difficult to findege manufacturers increasingly are turning to
parties, like us, to provide advanced mixed-sigadlitions. Mixed-signal design involves great comjily and difficulty, because the
performance of the IC depends on the creative gretpertise of engineers to optimize speed, poaraplitude and resolution despite the n
digital environment and within the constraints rglard manufacturing processes. The developmeartadbdg design expertise typically
requires years of practical analog design expegiemcler the guidance of a senior engineer, ancheas with the required level of skill and
expertise are in short supply.

Many third-party IC providers lack sufficient anglexpertise to develop compelling mixed-signal I€s.a result, manufacturers of
electronic devices value third-party providers et supply them with mixed-signal ICs with gredterctionality, smaller size and lower
power requirements at a reduced cost and shamtertth-market.

Products

We provide analog-intensive, mixed-signal ICs fee in a variety of electronic products in a broaage of applications including mobile
handsets, PC modems, satellite set top boxes, atit@tontrols and sensors, radio tuners, persadab recorders, industrial monitoring and
control, central office telephone equipment andoaphetworking equipment. Our products integraimplex mixed-signal functions that are
frequently performed by numerous discrete compaientompetitive products into single chips or ceig. By doing so, we are able to create
products that when compared to many competitivelyets:

* Require less board space;

* Reduce the use of external components;
« Can offer superior performance;

» Provide increased reliability;

* Reduce system power requirements;

» Are easier for customers to use; and

* Reduce costs.




We group our products into two categories, mobéedset products and broad-based mixed-signal praddobile handset products
include our Aero® Transceivers, AeroFONE™ singlgagihone, Power Amplifiers (PA) and to the extertarporated into handsets, FM
broadcast radio tuners and FM transmitters. Braskt mixed-signal products include our silicon Etilsccess Arrangement (DAA),
ISOmodem® embedded modems, ProSLIC® subscribeirteeface circuits, microcontroller products, D&halog front end (AFE), SIPHY®
optical physical layer transceivers, precision kl&cdata recovery ICs (CDRs), XM satellite radiméw, digital power products, Power over
Ethernet controller, oscillators (XOs), voltage-tolied oscillators (VCXOs), SIRX™ satellite receig, RF Synthesizers and to the extent
incorporated into non-handset applications, FM teaat radio tuners and FM transmitters. The folfmatable summarizes the diverse product
areas and applications for the various ICs thahawee introduced to customers:

Product Areas and Description Applications
Mobile Handset Product

Aero Transceiver

The Aero Transceiver family provides highly intetgichtransmit an « GSM/GPRS/EDGE wireless
receive radio functionality that is found betweka antennae electronics phones, smart phones and
and the digital baseband section of a Global Sy$terilobile PDAs

Communications (GSM)/General Packet Radio SerigéRS)/ « GSM/GPRS/EDGE data
Enhanced Data Rates for Global Evolution (EDGE) ihediendset or communications devices

wireless data communication device. These solutieqgire a smaller
footprint than most competing solutions in thistiefactor sensitive
market and can be paired with virtually any basdbahe Aero
Transceivers are designed using 100% standard CMQ®ss
technology which facilitates cost reduction anegration.

AeroFONE
Our AeroFONE singl-chip phone is an integrated, high performa + GSM/GPRS wireless phones
solution for GSM/GPRS handsets. The AeroFONE igbas patent « GSM/GPRS data
pending, breakthrough innovations enabling a féullyetional single-chip communications devices
phone that integrates the power management unitX)P battery interface
and charging circuitry, digital baseband, analogelbband and a qudzind
RF transceiver in a single monolithic CMOS

FM Radio Tuners and Transmitters for Mobile Hansl
Our FM tuner delivers the entire FM tuner from am input to audio + Mobile phones
output in a single chip. The FM transmitters allowstomers to cost
effectively add wireless FM audio playback cap#&piid any portable
media device. Using a digital architecture, the fellers and transmitters
significantly improve performance while reducingrgmonent count and
saving board space. They integrate selectivitgriilty, automatic gain
control, frequency synthesizer and audio processiaking them ideal fc
portable audio application




Power Amplifiers
Our Power Amplifiers for dual and -band cellular handsets &
monolithic GSM PA solutions implemented in CMOSzating high
levels of integration and performance without dagnig quality or
reliability. Our PA integrates power control cirtsjiinnovative
temperature and overvoltage protection circuifsutrand output matchir
networks and harmonic filters. Our PA provides oastrs with flexibility
to meet key specifications for low cost phor

Broad-Based Mixe-Signal Productt

Silicon Direct Access Arrangement (DA,
Our DAA provides the functionality of both a diremtcess arrangement
and a codec in a single chipset. A direct accesmgement provides
electrical isolation between a wireline device,tsas a modem, and the
telephone line to guard against power surges itelephone line, while
the codec provides analog-to-digital and digitakt@log conversion.

ISOmodermrEmbedded Moderr
The ISOmodem combines an analog modem with a sil&A, resulting
in a complete modem implemented in a very smathféactor. The
ISOmodem products are designed for embedded mogdplications,
outside of the personal computer area such aggdteixes and PVRs.
The ISOmodem contains a programmable line interflaaemeets global
telephone line requirements, allowing manufactuteisiplement a sing
modem design world-wide. The ISOmodem family inels@mbedded
modem solutions for speeds ranging from 2400 bfa6kbps, suitable
for a wide range of applications.

ProSLIC Subscriber Line Interface Circu
The ProSLIC provides the analog subscriber linerfate on the source
end of the telephone which generates dial tone; tare, caller ID and
ring signal. Our ProSLIC product family has offeynfor short-haul
applications suitable for the customer premiseselkas long-haul
applications suitable for the traditional telepha@oenpany central office.

Dual and triband GSM/GPR
handsets

Desktop and notebook
modems

Modem Riser Cards
Mobile Daughter Cards
Modem on motherboard
Mini PCI cards
Handheld organizers
Set-top boxes

Video conferencing systems
PBXs and IP telephony
products

Set-top and digital cable
boxes

Industrial monitoring
Postage meters

Security systems

Remote medical monitoring
Gaming consoles

PVRs

Point of sale (POS) terminals
Fax machines and multi-
function printers

IP telephony

Wireless local loop providing
remote access for a wireline
system

Voice over broadband
modems and terminal adapters
VolIP residential gateways
PBXs

Wired long loop and central
office system:




Microcontroller Product
Our C8051F family of -bit mixec-signal microcontrollers integrat
intelligent data capture in the form of high-redwo data converters, a
traditional MCU computing function, Flash memondamnhighly
programmable set of communication interfaces iimgls system on a
chip. The combination of configurable high-performoa analog, up to
100 Million Instructions Per Second (MIPS), 805tecand in-system
field programmability provides the user with desflgxibility, improved
time-to-market, superior system performance andtgre=nd product
differentiation. These products are designed ferinsa large variety of
end-markets, including the automotive, communicetj@onsumer,
industrial, medical and power management markets.

DSL Analog Front Ent
The DSL AFE is designed to provide the connectifatyctions for
business or residential asymmetric digital subscriine (ADSL)
connection at the user end in customer premisepm@gnt. Such a
connection addresses the business and resideatierdd for high-speed
connectivity. The DSL AFE supports several ADSL coamication
standards enabling various upload and downloadrdégs.

SiPHY Optical Physical Layer Transceiwv
We offer a family of hig-speed physical layer ICs that meet the -
speed fiber Synchronous Optical Network (SONET) &gdchronous
Digital Hierarchy (SDH) specifications. The tranisee IC provides both
the receive path deserialization and transmit pathalization as required
by the SONET/SDH physical layer. We also offermifg of clock and
data recovery chips to provide specific functionmaltiple speeds up to
the OC-48 rate. All of our physical layer produstdize our proprietary
digital signal processing technology to reducedbece’s sensitivity to
boarc-level noise and improve performan

Industrial automation and
control

Automotive sensors and
controls

Medical instrumentation
Electronic test and
measurement equipment
Power management
Weigh scales

Optical line cards

Digital cameras
Computer peripherals
Wireless headsets
Magstripe readers
Gaming consoles
Electronic toys

Personal computer modems
External modems
Residential gateways
Network interface devices

Optical port cards for
SONET/SDH optical
networking equipment
Optical test equipment

High speed serial back plane
interfaces




Precision Clock Integrated Circu
Our precision clock product family includes variqursducts rangini .
from general purpose clock multiplier products aghigh performance
multi-port, redundant, multiple frequency rangec&onultipliers and
regenerators. Network systems require very highigian, low jitter, .
clock sources. Our knowledge gained in developirgphysical layer .
transceiver subsections provided us the techndimgyfer these high
performance clock products. Traditionally, thesecklsources have been
implemented using expensive, bulky modules, nunmeooystal sources,
complicated discrete circuitry requiring numeroamponents, or hybrid
IC/discrete solutions that offer limited functioitgl The frequency agility
performance, and integration offered by these dsvére key design
features for our customer ba

Satellite Radio Tune
Our satellite radio tuner combines our RF Synttezsidth a highly .
integrated tuner for a complete XM satellite raminer chipset. By
leveraging CMOS technology, our satellite radioetuminimizes the use
of external components such as external voltagéraited oscillators
(VCOs), varactor diodes, and loop filters. The tum®vides strong
system performance, meets stringent quality stalsdand fits into a very
small footprint.

Power Product

Our family of power products is based on a pateatetitecture .
consuming significantly less space than currenitgnis. These products .
are still in the early stages of customer adoption. .

Power over Ethernet Controll
Our Power over Ethernet (PoE) controller for powledevice (PD .
applications integrates on-chip diode bridgesaadient surge suppressor «
and a switching regulator field effect transisfiine controllers high leve
of integration simplifies POE design efforts by miegtically reducing the
total bill of materials, printed circuit board (PLC&ea and time to market. ,
This product is still in the early stages of custoradoption and is not yet
being produced in volume.

General Purpose FM Radio Tuners and FM Transm
Our FM tuners and transmitters (described abowegakso increasingl .
deployed in applications other than mobile handsets .

Optical port cards for
SONET/SDH optical
networking equipment
Networking test equipment

Short and long haul
networking equipment

Consumer and automotive
XM satellite radios

Networking and servers
Medical instrumentation
Power supplies
Industrial application

Wireless access points (WA
VolIP phones

Radio frequency identificatic
(RFID) tag readers

POS terminals

Security systems

Camera

Stand-alone FM radios
personal computers
Portable audio devices
MP3/digital media players
Navigation/GPS devices
Satellite radio:




Oscillators

Our families of oscillators (XOs) and volte-controlled oscillator: » Networking equipment
(VCXOs) for applications up to 1.4 GHz include thdustry’s first quad « Base stations
frequency XO and VCXO devices. Leveraging our pa@mDSPLL® « Test and measurement
technology, both families are easy to design in@mdide superior equipment

reliability and performance. . Storage area networks

« Video system

SiRX Satellite Receivel
The SiRX product family is a ful-integrated sing-chip satellite RF « FTA and pay TV DBS
front-end for direct broadcast satellite (DBS). emging our world-class equipment
RF expertise in CMOS, the SiRX satellite RF fronténtegrates a high- « satellite set-top boxes
performance satellite L-band RF tuner, a dual-nlou@-S/DSS digital « PC Cards
demodulator and a power-efficient, step-up supphtoller for the low- DVD Recorders

noise block converter (LNB) into a single 6 x 8 mklOS solution. s
* Televisions

RF Synthesizer

A RF synthesizer generates high frequency sighalsare used i e Satellite radio
wireless communications systems to select a pdaticadio channel. We .« \ireless local area networks
provide general purpose RF Synthesizers for a tyapiewireless « Cordless phones

communications devices, including the industrialesce, medical (ISM)
band applications and satellite radio applicatiéhs: synthesizers are
well-suited to meet the increasing requirementighly-integrated
electronics that reduce component count and consessgower

* Wireless headsets
* Wireless LAN (802.11b)
modems

During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, sales of ourifediandset products accounted for 44%, 44% and &08ar revenues, respectively.
During the same periods, sales of our broad-baseedasignal products accounted for 56%, 56% and 50%ar revenues, respectively.

Customers, Sales and Marketing

We market our products in various markets throughdirect sales force, a network of independergssedpresentatives, and electronics
distributors. Direct and distributor customers lomyan individual purchase order basis, rather thasuant to long-term agreements.

We consider our customer to be the end customehpsing either directly from a distributor, a cactrmanufacturer or us. An end
customer purchasing through a contract manufactypésally instructs such contract manufactureoliéain our products and incorporate such
products with other components for sale by suctirachmanufacturer to the end customer. Althoughaeteally sell the products to, and are
paid by, the distributors and contract manufactynee refer to such end customer as our customer.

One of our distributors, Edom Technology, represéi®3% of our fiscal 2006 revenues. Distributoesrast considered end customers,
rather serve as a sales channel to our end custoMeother distributor accounted for 10% or mdreegenues for fiscal 2006.

During fiscal 2006, our ten largest end customec®anted for 50% of our revenues. We had one estbieer, Samsung, which
represented 11% of our revenues during fiscal 2B@6other single end customer accounted for mae 9% of our revenues during this
period. Our major customers include Agere Systeéxrisja, Chi Mei, Compal, LG Electronics, Motorolaagem, Samsung, Tellabs
and Thomson.




We maintain sales offices throughout North Ameridé provide European sales support through ouridiabigs in the United Kingdom,
France, Germany, Italy and Sweden. Our Asia Pas#ies are supported through our subsidiariespan]adong Kong and Singapore, as well
as sales offices in South Korea, Taiwan and Chreaenue is attributed to a geographic area bas#ukeoend customer’s shipped-to location.
The percentage of our revenues to customers locatsitle of the United States was 89% in fiscal2@hina, Taiwan and South Korea
accounted for 22%, 21% and 19% of our fiscal 2@&nues, respectively. For further information rdgey our revenues and loriged asset
by geographic area, see Note 12, “Segment InfoomAtto the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our direct sales force includes regional sales garsain the field and area business managers tteefusupport customer communicatic
Many of these managers have engineering degreesnaeain a dedicated website for our field salgmnization, which includes technical
documentation, backlog information, order statusdpct availability and new product introductioidrmation to support our communications
with that organization. Additionally, we providereict communication to all field sales personngbas of a structured sales communications
program.

We also utilize independent sales representatindgiestributors to generate sales of our prodWfs have relationships with many
independent sales representatives and distributorsiwide whom we have selected based on their nstateding of the mixed-signal IC
marketplace and their ability to provide effectfiedd sales applications support for our products.

Our marketing efforts are targeted at both idesdiindustry leaders and emerging market particgpdditect marketing activities are
supplemented by a focused marketing communicagéfost that seeks to raise awareness of our compadyproducts. Our public relations
efforts are focused on leading trade and busineskcations. Our external website is used to delogrporate information and product
information. We also pursue targeted advertisinkeiy trade publications and we have a cooperatiakeating program that allows our
distributors and representatives to promote oudyets to their local markets in conjunction witeithown advertising activities. Finally we
maintain a presence at strategic trade shows alugtiry events. These activities, in combinatiorhwiirect sales activities, help drive demand
for our products.

Due to the complex and innovative nature of our, M@s employ experienced applications engineerswitrk closely with customers to
support the design-win process, and can signifigaticelerate the customer’s time required to barmoduct to market. A design-win occurs
when a customer has designed our ICs into its mtoghehitecture. A considerable amount of efforassist the customer in incorporating our
ICs into its products is typically required priordny sale. In many cases, our innovative ICs reggignificantly different implementations tr
existing approaches and, therefore, successfubim@htations may require extensive communicatioh pdtential customers. The amount of
time required to achieve a design-win can vary sutiiglly depending on a customer’s developmentegyehich can be relatively short (such
as three months) or very long (such as two yearsgd on a wide variety of customer factors. Notl@dlign wins ultimately result in revenue.
However, once a completed design architecture das bmplemented and produced in high volumes, astoeners are reluctant to significal
alter their designs due to this extensive desigmgwocess. We believe this process, coupled withraellectual property protection, promotes
relatively longer product life cycles for our ICsdahigh barriers to entry for competitive produetgen if such competing products are offered
at lower prices. Finally, our close collaboratioithaour customers provides us with knowledge ofv@give product ideas or completely new
product line offerings that may not otherwise aitsether new product discussions.
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Research and Developmer

Through our research and development efforts, vaéyaqur experienced analog and mix&gnal engineering talent and expertise to c
new ICs that integrate functions typically perfodreefficiently by multiple discrete components.iFntegration generally results in lower
costs, smaller die sizes, lower power demands ahdreed price/performance characteristics. We attémreuse successful techniques for
integration in new applications where similar béisefan be realized. We believe that reliable amtipe analog and mixed-signal ICs can only
be developed by teams of engineers that coordihateefforts under the direction of senior engisegho have significant analog experience
and are familiar with the intricacies of designthgse ICs for commercial volume production. Theeliggment of test methodologies is a
critical activity in releasing a new product fomemercial success. We believe that we have attractetk of the best engineers in our industry.

Research and development expenses were $121.8m#iL01.2 million and $78.1 million fiscal 200®05 and 2004, respectively.

Technology

Our product development process facilitates thégdesf highly-innovative, analog-intensive, mixeigisal ICs. Our senior engineers start
the product development process by forming an wwtdeding of our customers’ products and needstemdesign alternatives with increased
functionality and with decreasing power, size aostcequirements. Our engineers’ deep knowledgexisting and emerging standards and
performance requirements help us to assess theitatfeasibility of a particular IC. We target asewhere we can provide compelling product
improvements. Once we have solved the primary ehgés, our field application engineers continuededk closely with our customerslesigr
teams to maintain and develop an understandingio€wstomers’ needs, allowing us to formulate deive products and refined features.

In providing mixed-signal ICs for our customers, agdieve our key competitive advantages are:

* Analog design expertise in CMOS;

« Digital signal processing design expertise;

» Microcontroller and system on a chip design expertand

* Our broad understanding of systems technology ramdis.

To fully capitalize on these advantages, we hagerabled a world-class development team with exgeatianalog and mixed-signal
design expertise led by accomplished senior enggnee
Analog Design Expertise in CMOS

We believe that our most significant core competéaour world-class analog design capability. Ambaially, we strive to design
substantially all of our ICs in CMOS processes.rélae several modern process technologies for faetowing semiconductors including
CMOS, Bipolar, BICMOS, silicon germanium and gatiwrsenide. While it is significantly more diffi¢cub design analog ICs in CMOS,
CMOS provides multiple benefits versus existingrilatives, including significantly reduced costlueed technology risk and greater
worldwide foundry capacity. CMOS is the most comigarsed process technology for manufacturing dig@fa and as a result is most likely
to be used for the manufacturing of ICs with filiee geometries, which enable smaller and faster By designing our ICs in CMOS, we
enable our products to benefit from this trend talsdiner line geometries, which allows us to imeéég more digital functionality into our
mixed-signal ICs.
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Designing analog and mixed-signal ICs is signifttamore complicated than designing stand alon&alitCs. While advanced software
tools exist to help automate digital IC designy¢hare far fewer tools for advanced analog and dasignal IC design. In many cases, our
analog circuit design efforts begin at the fundataktnansistor level. We believe that we have aalestrated ability to design the most diffic
analog and RF circuits using standard CMOS teclyieto For example, our ProSLIC product family imgggs subscriber line interface circuit
(SLIC), codec and battery generation functionatitp a single low-voltage CMOS IC. Similarly, bulkyireless phone components such as
voltage controlled oscillators and intermediat@frency surface acoustic wave filters are replageaub AERO transceiver products.

Digital Signal Processing Design Expertise

We consider the partitioning of a circuit’'s functadity to be a proprietary and creative design mégplre. Our digital signal processing
design expertise maximizes the price/performaneeatiteristics of both the analog and digital fumasi and allows our ICs to work in an
optimized manner to accomplish particular taskségally, we surround core analog circuitry withithgCMOS transistors, which allows our
ICs to perform the required analog functions witbreased digital capabilities. For example, ouiSRI€ product is designed to function more
efficiently than traditional products for the soairend of the telephone line, which involve a twipadombination requiring more board space
and numerous external components. The ProSLIC ptaslpartitioned by combining a core analog desligit provides analog-to-digital
conversion and digital-to-analog conversion wittimzed digital signal processing functions sucldata compression, data expansion,
filtering and tone generation. In this manner, \&a solate the higher voltage required to ringlepteone in low-cost, off-chip high voltage
transistors or a small, complementary high voltelgip, thereby enabling us to fulfill the remainiogre functions with a single CMOS chip.

Microcontroller and System on a Chip Design Experge

We have expanded our system on a chip expertiselie the talent and circuit integration methadgiés required to combine precision
analog, high-speed digital, Flash memory andyistem programmability into a single, monolithic OB integrated circuit. Our microcontrol
products are designed to capture an external as@ogl, convert it to a digital signal, computgitéil functions on the stream of data and then
communicate the results through a standard digitaiface. The ability to develop standard prodwdgth the broadest possible customer
application base while being cost efficient witle #ilicon area of the monolithic CMOS integratedtwit requires a keen sense of customer
value and engineering capabilities. Additionaltytanage the wide variety of signals on a mondaliiéce of silicon including electrical noi:
harmonics and other electronic distortions requirisndamental knowledge of device physics andractated design expertise.

We have also demonstrated our system on a chifpititiea with the introduction of the AeroFONE slegchip phone, a fully functional
and completely integrated single-chip phone. Thistgon provides superior integration and softwi#egibility and demonstrates our capability
to design our own software that works with our oostr and software partner solutions.

Understanding of Systems Technology and Trends

Our focused expertise in mixed-signal ICs is theulteof the breadth of engineering talent we hassembled with experience working in
analog-intensive CMOS design for a wide varietgpplications. This expertise, which we consideomgetitive advantage, is the foundation
of our in-depth understanding of the technology tmedds that impact electronic systems and mark®ris expertise includes:

 Isolation, which is critical for existing and emarg telecom networks;
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« Frequency synthesis, which is core technology fioeless and clocking applications;
« Enabling integration of third-party software witbrdCs to create combined solutions; and
» Signal processing and precision analog, which fatrasheart of consumer, industrial, medical andmative electronics applications.

Our understanding of the role of analog/digitaéifdices within electronic systems, standards eisluand end market drivers enables us
to identify product development opportunities aagitalize on market trends.

Manufacturing

As a fabless IC manufacturer, we conduct IC deaighdevelopment in our facilities and electronictdansfer our proprietary IC designs
to third-party semiconductor fabricators who pracgiticon wafers to produce the ICs that we dediym. IC designs typically use industry-
standard CMOS manufacturing process technologgha@se a level of performance normally associatéd more expensive special-purpose
IC fabrication technology. We believe the use of @Mtechnology facilitates the rapid production of tCs within a lower cost framework.
Our IC production employs submicron process gedagetrhich are readily available from leading founduppliers worldwide, thus increas
the likelihood that manufacturing capacity will &eailable throughout our products’ life cycles. Werently partner principally with Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co. (TSMC) to manufeetour semiconductor wafers. We believe that oblefss manufacturing model
significantly reduces our capital requirements atholvs us to focus our resources on design, dewsdop and marketing of our ICs.

Once the silicon wafers have been produced, theglapped directly to our third-party assembly suthactors. The assembled ICs are
then moved to the final testing stage. This openatian be performed by the same contractor thatrdded the IC, other third-party test
subcontractors or within our internal facilities3ingapore or Austin, Texas, prior to shipping to customers. We have increasingly utilized
offshore third-party test subcontractors, typicatlyAsia where the parts are assembled and wherprdducts are frequently delivered to our
customers. During fiscal 2006, more than 89% ofunits shipped were tested by offshore third-ptety subcontractors. We expect that our
utilization of offshore third-party test subconti@s will remain at this or higher levels duringdal 2007.

Backlog

As of December 30, 2006, our backlog was approxity&t79.3 million, compared to approximately $98illion as of December 31,
2005. We include in backlog accepted product pusetmaders from customers and worldwide distribatocking orders. We only include
orders with an expected shipping date from us widiix months. Product orders in our backlog argesmlio changes in delivery schedules or
cancellation at the option of the purchaser typyoaithout penalty. Our backlog may fluctuate siiggantly depending upon customer order
patterns which may, in turn, vary considerably e rapidly changing business circumstances. Bgdkbm distributors is not recognized as
revenue until the products are sold by the distaisi Additionally, our arrangements with distribrg typically provide for price protection and
stock rotation activities. Accordingly, we do nalieve that our backlog at any time is necessagjyesentative of actual sales for any
succeeding period.

Competition

The markets for semiconductors generally, and iatay and mixed-signal ICs in particular, are istdp competitive. We believe the
principal competitive factors in our industry are:

¢ Product size;

» Level of integration;
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* Product capabilities;

* Reliability;

» Price;

» Performance;

« Intellectual property;

» Customer support;

* Reputation;

« Ability to rapidly introduce new products to markehd
« Power requirements.

We believe that we are competitive with respec¢hése factors, particularly because our ICs typicale smaller in size, are highly
integrated, achieve high performance specificatariewer price points than competitive productd are manufactured in standard CMOS
which generally enables us to supply them on divels rapid basis to customers to meet their pobdhtroduction schedules. However,
disadvantages we face include our relatively sbpetrating history in certain of our markets andribed for customers to redesign their
products and modify their software to implement s in their products.

We anticipate that the market for our products wglhtinually evolve and will be subject to rapidhaological change. For example, the
mobile handset market is transitioning to more aded air interfaces including EDGE and WidebandeCBivision Multiple Access
(WCDMA) in addition to the GSM/GPRS standard. Weédaxtended our Aero family to meet the EDGE stathekdth the Aero lle singleship
EDGE Radio and the Aero lled. However, we cannatdréain any product we develop for these standaiitiachieve market acceptance. In
addition, as we target and supply products to nomeemarkets and applications, we face competitiom fa relatively large number of
competitors. We compete with Agere Systems, Atdrglog Devices, Broadcom, Conexant, Cypress, Egaagscale, Fujitsu, Infineon
Technologies, Legerity, Maxim Integrated ProdubtediaTek, Microchip, National Semiconductor, NXm8eonductors, Renesas, RF Micro
Devices, Semtech, Skyworks Solutions, Texas Ingnis Vectron International and others. We expetade competition in the future from
our current competitors, other manufacturers arsibders of semiconductors, and innovative starsericonductor design companies. Our
competitors may also offer bundled chipset kit mgements offering a more complete product, whick megatively impact our competitive
position despite the technical merits or advantadesir products. In addition, our customers calggtelop products or technologies internally
that would replace their need for our productswaondld become a source of competition. As the marfatelectronic products grow, we also
may face competition from traditional electroniovide companies. These companies may enter the msigeal semiconductor market by
introducing their own products, including comporsewithin their products that would eliminate theeddor our ICs, or by entering into
strategic relationships with or acquiring othersgéixig IC providers.

Many of our competitors and potential competitcgdnlonger operating histories, greater name ratiognaccess to larger customer
bases, complementary product offerings, and sicanitly greater financial, sales and marketing, rfeturing, distribution, technical and ott
resources than us. Current and potential competitave established or may establish financial &natlegjic relationships between themselves
or with our existing or potential customers, remwllor other third parties. Accordingly, it is pibds that new competitors or alliances among
competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire sicgnift market share.
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Intellectual Property

Our future success depends in part upon our prapyitéechnology. We seek to protect our technokbggugh a combination of patents,
copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks and confaléntprocedures. As of December 30, 2006, we dggroximately 800 issued or pending
United States patents in the IC field. We alsodrayly file for patent protection in a variety atérnational jurisdictions with respect to the
proprietary technology covered by our U.S. patents patent applications. There can be no assuthatpatents will ever be issued with
respect to these applications. Furthermore, ib&sible that any patents held by us may be inv&ijacircumvented, challenged or licensed to
others. In addition, there can be no assurancestitdt patents will provide us with competitive atkeges or adequately safeguard our
proprietary rights. While we continue to file neatent applications with respect to our recent dgwekents, existing patents are granted for
prescribed time periods and will expire at varidoges in the future.

We claim copyright protection for proprietary docemation for our products. We have filed for regigon, or are in the process of filing
for registration, of the visual images of certa@s lwith the U.S. Copyright Office. We have registethe “Silicon Laboratories” logo and a
variety of other product and product family namgdrademarks in the United States and selecte@jfojerisdictions. All other trademarks,
service marks or trade names appearing in thistrepe the property of their respective owners.alée attempt to protect our trade secrets anc
other proprietary information through agreementwiur customers, suppliers, employees and comdsjtand through other customary
security measures. We intend to protect our righysrously, but there can be no assurance thagfboits will be successful. In addition, the
laws of other countries in which our products ane snay not protect our products and intellectuaperty rights to the same extent as the |
of the United States.

While our ability to effectively compete dependddrge part on our ability to protect our intelleat property, we believe that our
technical expertise and ability to introduce newdurcts in a timely manner will be an important feéh maintaining our competitive position.

Many participants in the semiconductor and eledtmdustries have a significant number of patants have frequently demonstrated a
readiness to commence litigation based on allegaiid patent and other intellectual property irdgment. From time to time, third parties r
assert infringement claims against us. We may retgil in any such litigation or may not be ablditense any valid and infringed patents
from third parties on commercially reasonable terifnat all. Litigation, regardless of the outconmelikely to result in substantial cost and
diversion of our resources, including our managefeéime. Any such litigation could materially adgely affect us. For further information
regarding patent litigation, please see “Parteimit3. Legal Proceedings.”

Our licenses include industry standard licenseb witr vendors, such as wafer fabrication tool lies third party core libraries,
computer-aided design applications and busineswad applications.
Employees

As of December 30, 2006, we employed 742 people sOccess depends on the continued service ofeyutelchnical and senior
management personnel and on our ability to contiawtract, retain and motivate highly skilled laggand mixed-signal engineers. The
competition for such personnel is intense. We hexeer had a work stoppage and none of our empl@reeepresented by a labor
organization. We consider our employee relatiorsetgood.
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Environmental Regulation

Federal, state and local regulations impose vagowgonmental controls on the storage, use, digehand disposal of certain chemicals
and gases used in the semiconductor industry. @upliance with these laws and regulations has adtehmaterial impact on our financial
position or results of operations.
Item 1A.  Risk Factors
Risks Related to our Business

We may not be able to maintain our historical growhh and may experience significant period-to-periodléictuations in our revenues and
operating results, which may result in volatility in our stock price

Although we have generally experienced revenue tiranour history, we may not be able to sustais gnowth. We may also experien
significant period-to-period fluctuations in ouvemues and operating results in the future duentanaber of factors, and any such variations
may cause our stock price to fluctuate. It is fkidlat in some future period our revenues or opegatsults will be below the expectations of
public market analysts or investors. If this occotg stock price may drop, perhaps significantly.

A number of factors, in addition to those citedther risk factors applicable to our business, g@mytribute to fluctuations in our revent
and operating results, including:

« The timing and volume of orders received from austomers;
« The timeliness of our new product introductions #rarate at which our new products may cannibaizeolder products;

» The rate of acceptance of our products by our custs, including the acceptance of new products &g develop for integration in t
products manufactured by such customers, whichefes to as “design wins”;

« The time lag and realization rate between “desigrsivand production orders;
* The demand for, and life cycles of, the product®iporating our ICs;
» The rate of adoption of mixed-signal ICs in the keds we target;

« Deferrals or reductions of customer orders in guaitton of new products or product enhancements fus or our competitors or other
providers of ICs;

» Changes in product mix;

« The average selling prices for our products coutppuddenly due to competitive offerings or coritpet predatory pricing, especia
with respect to our mobile handset and modem pitsguc

» The average selling prices for our products gehedgcline over time;

« Changes in market standards;

« Impairment charges related to inventory, equipneemither long-lived assets;

» The software used in our products and providechivg{party software providers must meet the nedéasipncustomers;
+ Significant legal costs to defend our intellectpidperty rights or respond to claims against ud; an

« The rate at which new markets emerge for produetsng currently developing or for which our deségpertise can be utilized to
develop products for these new markets.
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The markets for mobile handsets, personal compigatsllite television set-top boxes and VolP ations are characterized by rapid
fluctuations in demand and seasonality that reésubrresponding fluctuations in the demand for praducts that are incorporated in such
devices. Additionally, the rate of technology adeepe by our customers results in fluctuating dedhfanour products as customers are
reluctant to incorporate a new IC into their pradumtil the new IC has achieved market acceptaboee a new IC achieves market
acceptance, demand for the new IC can quickly acatd to a point and then level off such that rdystiorical growth in sales of a product
should not be viewed as indicative of continuedtfeitgrowth. In addition, demand can quickly declimea product when a new IC product is
introduced and receives market acceptance. Forgramobile handset transceivers that provide softiee functionality provided by our RF
Synthesizers have been introduced to market byndi®ar competitors. The introduction of these cotimgetransceivers, including our Aero
Transceiver, resulted in a rapid decline in ouesalf RF Synthesizers for mobile handsets. Dukdwarious factors mentioned above, the
results of any prior quarterly or annual periodswstl not be relied upon as an indication of ounfetoperating performance.

If we are unable to develop or acquire new and enimaed products that achieve market acceptance in &nely manner, our operating
results and competitive position could be harmed

Our future success will depend on our ability tduee our dependence on a few products by develapiagquiring new ICs and product
enhancements that achieve market acceptancernmeyytand cost-effective manner. The developmemiged-signal ICs is highly complex,
and we have at times experienced delays in comglétie development and introduction of new prodaats product enhancements. Succe
product development and market acceptance of maugsts depend on a number of factors, including:

< Changing requirements of customers;

¢ Accurate prediction of market and technical requiets, such as the shift of GSM/GPRS to EDGE and®WE,;
» Timely completion and introduction of new designs;

« Market trends towards integration of discrete congas onto one device;

« Timely qualification and certification of our ICerfuse in our customers’ products;

» Commercial acceptance and volume production opthducts into which our ICs will be incorporated;
» Availability of foundry, assembly and test capagity

« Achievement of high manufacturing yields;

« Quality, price, performance, power use and sizeuofproducts;

« Availability, quality, price and performance of cpating products and technologies;

« Our customer service, application support cap@&sliand responsiveness;

« Successful development of our relationships witisteyg and potential customers;

« Changes in technology, industry standards or eed{rferences; and

» Cooperation of third-party software providers amd semiconductor vendors to support our chips withsystem.
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We cannot provide any assurance that products whéctecently have developed or may develop in tiheré will achieve market
acceptance. We have introduced to market or adevelopment of many ICs. If our ICs fail to achiewarket acceptance, or if we fail to
develop new products on a timely basis that achieaket acceptance, our growth prospects, operesgts and competitive position could
be adversely affected.

Our research and development efforts are focused amlimited number of new technologies and productand any delay in the
development, or abandonment, of these technologies products by industry participants, or their fail ure to achieve market acceptance,
could compromise our competitive position

Our ICs are used as components in electronic deucearious markets. As a result, we have devatelexpect to continue to devote a
large amount of resources to develop products basesw and emerging technologies and standardsvthhe commercially introduced in
the future. Research and development expense diistad 2006 was $121.7 million, or 26.2% of revesuA number of large companies are
actively involved in the development of these neshhologies and standards. Should any of theseagiegdelay or abandon their efforts to
develop commercially available products based anteehnologies and standards, our research andogenwent efforts with respect to these
technologies and standards likely would have naeggable value. In addition, if we do not corredlyticipate new technologies and stande
or if the products that we develop based on thesetachnologies and standards fail to achieve maideeptance, our competitors may be
better able to address market demand than we wbBufthermore, if markets for these new technologies standards develop later than we
anticipate, or do not develop at all, demand farmroducts that are currently in development waultfer, resulting in lower sales of these
products than we currently anticipate. For exampkehave introduced to market the Aero Transceiveduct for use in wireless phones
operating on the GSM/GPRS standard. We believethiket is now in the early stages of adoptingBB&E and WCDMA standards, which
allow for enhanced data generation and transmissorg mobile handsets. Forecasters expect the ER@BVCDMA markets to further
develop and expand. We have extended our Aeroyamineet the EDGE standard with the Aero lle sirghip EDGE Radio that we
introduced in September 2005 and the Aero lledweaintroduced in September 2006. However, we calnaeertain that the use of this
technology will not change in the future and thgretake our products unsuitable. Furthermore, waatbe certain that any product we
develop for these standards will achieve markeg¢giznce.

We depend on a limited number of customers for a &istantial portion of our revenues, and the loss ofyr a significant reduction in
orders from, any key customer could significantly educe our revenues

The loss of any of our key customers, or a sigaificeduction in sales to any one of them, wouldificantly reduce our revenues and
adversely affect our business. During fiscal 2@08,ten largest customers accounted for 50% of@tenues. We had one customer, Sams
which represented 11% of our revenues. Most ofrthekets for our products are dominated by a smatiber of potential customers.
Therefore, our operating results in the foreseehltige will continue to depend on our ability &lldo these dominant customers, as well a
ability of these customers to sell products thabiporate our IC products. In the future, theséarusrs may decide not to purchase our ICs at
all, purchase fewer ICs than they did in the pastlter their purchasing patterns, particularlydese:

* We do not have material long-term purchase corgnaith our customers;

« Substantially all of our sales to date have beedentm a purchase order basis, which permits odowess to cancel, change or delay
product purchase commitments with little or no oetio us and without penalty;
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« Some of our customers may have efforts underwagtioely diversify their vendor base which coulduee purchases of our ICs; and

« Some of our customers have developed or acquidlpts that compete directly with products thestamers purchase from us,
which could affect our customers’ purchasing decisiin the future.

While we have been a significant supplier of ICedug many of our customers’ products, our custemegularly evaluate alternative
sources of supply in order to diversify their sigpbase, which increases their negotiating leveraigh us and protects their ability to secure
these components. We believe that any expansionrafustomers’ supplier bases could have an adeéfeset on the prices we are able to
charge and volume of product that we are ableltaseur customers, which would negatively affeat revenues and operating results.

We have increased our international activities sigificantly and plan to continue such efforts, whichsubjects us to additional business
risks including increased logistical and financiakomplexity, political instability and currency fluctuations

We have established additional international sués&s and have opened additional offices in irdéamal markets to expand our
international activities in Europe and the Padiim region. This has included the establishmerat béadquarters in Singapore for non-U.S.
operations. The percentage of our revenues to mestlocated outside of the United States was 80fi6dal 2006. We may not be able to
maintain or increase international market demamadm products. Our international operations atgext to a number of risks, including:

« Increased complexity and costs of managing inteynat operations and related tax obligations, iditlg our headquarters for nahs.
operations in Singapore;

« Protectionist laws and business practices thatrflaoal competition in some countries;

Difficulties related to the protection of our intdtual property rights in some countries;

Multiple, conflicting and changing tax laws and ugions that may impact both our international dochestic tax liabilities and result
in increased complexity and costs;

* Longer sales cycles;

< Greater difficulty in accounts receivable colleat@and longer collection periods;

< High levels of distributor inventory subject tog®iprotection and rights of return to us;

» Political and economic instability;

» Greater difficulty in hiring and retaining qualifigechnical sales and applications engineers amihégtrative personnel; and

« The need to have business and operations systamnsath meet the needs of our international busimedoperating structure.

To date, all of our sales to international custaaerd purchases of components from internatiorggilmrs have been denominated in
U.S. dollars. As a result, an increase in the valube U.S. dollar relative to foreign currenceesild make our products more expensive for
international customers to purchase, thus rendenmgproducts less competitive.
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Failure to manage our distribution channel relatiorships could impede our future growth

The future growth of our business will depend igéapart on our ability to manage our relationshijts current and future distributors
and sales representatives, develop additional @tafor the distribution and sale of our producetd enanage these relationships. As we
execute our indirect sales strategy, we must mattegpotential conflicts that may arise with ouredt sales efforts. For example, conflicts
with a distributor may arise when a customer bepinmghasing directly from us rather than throughdrstributor. The inability to successfully
execute or manage a multi-channel sales stratagyg aopede our future growth. In addition, relasbips with our distributors often involve
the use of price protection and inventory retughts. This often requires a significant amountadés managemessttime and system resourc
to manage properly.

We are subject to increased inventory risks and cts because we build our products based on forecagisovided by customers before
receiving purchase orders for the products

In order to ensure availability of our products $ome of our largest customers, we start the matwiag of our products in advance of
receiving purchase orders based on forecasts iy these customers. However, these forecaststdepresent binding purchase
commitments and we do not recognize sales for thes#ucts until they are shipped to the customeraAesult, we incur inventory and
manufacturing costs in advance of anticipated s&8lesause demand for our products may not mategiathanufacturing based on forecasts
subjects us to increased risks of high inventoryyigg costs, increased obsolescence and increassrdting costs. These inventory risks are
exacerbated when our customers purchase indirdgectygh contract manufacturers or hold componersdritory levels greater than their
consumption rate because this causes us to haveisdsility regarding the accumulated levels oféntory for such customers. A resulting
write-off of unusable or excess inventories wouldexsely affect our operating results.

We are subject to credit risks related to our acconts receivable

We do not generally obtain letters of credit orestbecurity for payment from customers, distribsitor contract manufacturers.
Accordingly, we are not protected against accoteteivable default or bankruptcy by these entitias: ten largest customers or distributors
represent a substantial majority of our accourtsiv@ble. If any such customer or distributor weeréecome insolvent or otherwise not satisfy
their obligations to us, we could be materiallyrhad.

Our products are complex and may contain errors whih could lead to product liability, an increase irour costs and/or a reduction in
our revenues

Our products are complex and may contain erromsicpéarly when first introduced or as new versi@anme released. Our new products are
increasingly being designed in more complex preeesgich further increases the risk of errors. Al primarily on our in-house testing
personnel to design test operations and procedoidstect any errors prior to delivery of our protuto our customers. Because our products
are manufactured by third parties, should probleotsir in the operation or performance of our ICs,may experience delays in meeting key
introduction dates or scheduled delivery datesurocostomers. These errors also could cause ustio significant re-engineering costs, divert
the attention of our engineering personnel fromproduct development efforts and cause significastomer relations and business repute
problems. Any defects could require product repiaeet or recall or we could be obligated to acceptipct returns. Any of the foregoing
could impose substantial costs and harm our busines
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Product liability claims may be asserted with respe our products. Our products are typically stigrices that are significantly lower
than the cost of the end-products into which theyimcorporated. A defect or failure in our prodactild cause failure in our customer’s end-
product, so we could face claims for damages tteatisproportionately higher than the revenuesganéits we receive from the products
involved. Furthermore, product liability risks grarticularly significant with respect to medicabasutomotive applications because of the risk
of serious harm to users of these products. Thamée no assurance that any insurance we mainthsuificiently protect us from any such
claims.

Significant litigation over intellectual property in our industry may cause us to become involved irostly and lengthy litigation which
could seriously harm our business

In recent years, there has been significant libgeitn the United States involving patents and pthiellectual property rights. From time
to time, we receive letters from various industaytigipants alleging infringement of patents, tradeks or misappropriation of trade secrets or
from customers requesting indemnification for claibmought against them by third parties. The exgdty nature of these inquiries has
become relatively common in the semiconductor itrgu$Ve respond when we deem appropriate and dsettlisy legal counsel. We have
been involved in litigation to protect our intelteal property rights in the past and may becomelired in such litigation again in the future.
For example, Analog Devices, Inc. recently fileldwasuit against us alleging willful infringement oértain intellectual property rights owned
by them—see “Part I, Item 3. Legal Proceedings 'the future, we may become involved in additidit@glation to defend allegations of
infringement asserted by others, both directly imitectly as a result of certain industry-standiademnities we may offer to our customers.
Legal proceedings could subject us to significadtility for damages or invalidate our proprietaights. Legal proceedings initiated by us to
protect our intellectual property rights could atesult in counterclaims or countersuits againsfuny litigation, regardless of its outcome,
would likely be time-consuming and expensive tohes and would divert our management’s time anenditbn. Most intellectual property
litigation also could force us to take specificiaes, including:

« Cease selling products that use the challengelieictigal property;

« Obtain from the owner of the infringed intellectgabperty a right to a license to sell or use #lewant technology, which license may
not be available on reasonable terms, or at all;

« Redesign those products that use infringing intli@l property; or
« Pursue legal remedies with third parties to enfaeindemnification rights, which may not adeqilapgotect our interests.

Our customers require our products to undergo a legthy and expensive qualification process without anassurance of product sales

Prior to purchasing our products, our customersireghat our products undergo an extensive qeaalibn process, which involves test
of the products in the customer’s system as weligasous reliability testing. This qualificatiomqress may continue for six months or longer.
However, qualification of a product by a customeesinot ensure any sales of the product to thébmes. Even after successful qualification
and sales of a product to a customer, a subsegemsion to the IC or software, changes in the I@anufacturing process or the selection of a
new supplier by us may require a new qualificapoocess, which may result in delays and in us hgléixcess or obsolete inventory. After our
products are qualified, it can take an additiomahsonths or more before the customer commencaswelproduction of components or
devices that incorporate our products. Despitectiuegertainties, we devote substantial resourcekiding design, engineering, sales,
marketing and management efforts, toward qualifogproducts with customers in anticipation oesalf we are unsuccessful or delayed in
qualifying any of our products with a customer,Istailure or delay would preclude or delay saleswth product to the customer, which may
impede our growth and cause our business to suffer.
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We rely on third parties to manufacture, assemble iad test our products and the failure to successfulimanage our relationships with
our manufacturers and subcontractors would negativly impact our ability to sell our products

We do not have our own wafer fab manufacturingliteess. Therefore, we rely principally on one thipdrty vendor, TSMC, to
manufacture the ICs we design. We also currentjymencipally on two Asian third-party assemblybgwontractors, Advanced Semiconductor
Engineering (ASE) and Amkor Technology, to asserablé package the silicon chips provided by the mdf@ use in final products.
Additionally, we rely on these offshore subcontoastfor a substantial portion of the testing reguients of our products prior to shipping. We
expect utilization of third-party subcontractorsctmtinue in the future.

The cyclical nature of the semiconductor industiyes wide fluctuations in available capacity atdkparty vendors. On occasion, we
have been unable to adequately respond to unexpecteases in customer demand due to capacityragms and, therefore, were unable to
benefit from this incremental demand. We may bebleto obtain adequate foundry, assembly or tgs@ty from our third-party
subcontractors to meet our customers’ delivery irequents even if we adequately forecast customerade.

There are significant risks associated with relyamghese third-party foundries and subcontractocdyding:
« Failure by us, our customers or their end custortweguialify a selected supplier;

« Potential insolvency of the third-party subcontoast

* Reduced control over delivery schedules and quality

« Limited warranties on wafers or products supplzdg;

« Potential increases in prices or payments in advémrccapacity;

* Increased need for international-based supplystmgi and financial management;

¢ Their inability to supply or support new or chargmackaging technologies; and

« Low test yields.

We typically do not have long-term supply contragith our third-party vendors which obligate thender to perform services and supply
products to us for a specific period, in specifi@ntities, and at specific prices. Our third-pdoiyndry, assembly and test subcontractors
typically do not guarantee that adequate capaditypes available to us within the time requiredni@et demand for our products. In the event
that these vendors fail to meet our demand for exatreason, we expect that it would take up tduvesvmonths to transition performance of
these services to new providers. Such a trangitiay also require gualification of the new provideysour customers or their end customers.

Since our inception, most of the silicon waferstfoe products that we have shipped were manufatiteer by TSMC or its affiliates.
Our customers typically complete their own quadifion process. If we fail to properly balance costo demand across the existing
semiconductor fabrication facilities that we uiar are required by our foundry partners to ineeear otherwise change the number of fab
lines that we utilize for our production, we migttt be able to fulfill demand for our products andy need to divert our engineering resources
away from new product development initiatives tpmart the fab line transition, which would adveysaffect our operating results.
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Our products incorporate technology licensed fromhird parties

We incorporate technology (including software) fised from third parties in our products. We cowddshbjected to claims of
infringement regardless of our lack of involvementhe development of the licensed technology. @dih a third party licensor is typically
obligated to indemnify us if the licensed technglagfringes on another party’s intellectual progeights, such indemnification is typically
limited in amount and may be worthless if the Ie@nbecomes insolvent. See “Significant litigatawer intellectual property in our industry
may cause us to become involved in costly and keniifigation which could seriously harm our busieg Furthermore, any failure of third
party technology to perform properly would adveysafect sales of our products incorporating sweahhology.

Our inability to manage growth could materially and adversely affect our business

In recent periods, we have increased the scoparaderations and expanded our workforce from G8fileyees at the end of fiscal 2005
to 742 employees at the end of fiscal 2006. Thisvtin has placed, and any future growth of our djiEma will continue to place, a significant
strain on our management personnel, systems aadroes. We anticipate that we will need to impletreenariety of new and upgraded sales,
operational and financial enterprise-wide systanfermation technology infrastructure, procedured aontrols, including the improvement of
our accounting and other internal management systemrmanage this growth and maintain complianch veigulatory guidelines, including
Sarbanes-Oxley Act requirements. During 2007, vaa pbd implement a global enterprise resource ptan(tERP) system to help us improve
our planning and management processes. We mayienperchallenges in implementing the new ERP systeanother related systems that
could adversely affect our business by disruptiagability to timely and accurately process andregey components of our financial
position, affecting our ability to complete the kaaion of our internal control over financial repog and attestation activities pursuant to
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 srugiting our ability to process certain transainacessary for our operations. As our
business grows our internal management systempragdsses will need to improve to ensure that weie in compliance. We also expect
that we will need to continue to expand, train, agegand motivate our workforce. All of these endeswill require substantial management
effort, and we anticipate that we will require aafial management personnel and internal procéssesnage these efforts and to plan for the
succession from time to time of certain persons héne been key management and technical persdfinel.are unable to effectively manage
our expanding global operations, including ourrin&tional headquarters in Singapore, our businestsl e materially and adversely affected.

We are subject to risks relating to product concerraition and lack of revenue diversification

We derive a substantial portion of our revenuesfeolimited number of products, and we expect tipesducts to continue to account for
a large percentage of our revenues in the near @omtinued market acceptance of these produdiseigfore, critical to our future success. In
addition, substantially all of our products that nseve sold include technology related to one oramdrour issued U.S. patents. If these patents
are found to be invalid or unenforceable, our caiitgrs could introduce competitive products thatldareduce both the volume and price per
unit of our products. Our business, operating tesfihancial condition and cash flows could therefbe adversely affected by:

» A decline in demand for any of our more significamducts, including our Aero Transceiver, modewodpicts, FM tuner or ProSLIC;
« Failure of our products to achieve continued maskeeptance;
* An improved version of our products being offergdabcompetitor;

» Technological standard or change that we are urntaldddress with our products;
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« A failure to release new products or enhanced orBssof our existing products on a timely basis; and
» The failure of our new products to achieve markeeatance.

We are particularly dependent on sales of our redidindset products which constituted 44% of o tetvenues during fiscal 2006. In
particular, our Aero Transceiver mobile handsetpm and its subsequent derivatives representstasuial portion of our mobile handset
product revenues. If the market for the Aero Trangr or the market for GSM/GPRS or EDGE mobiledsats in which these products are
incorporated deteriorates, our operating resultgldvbe materially and adversely affected.

We depend on our key personnel to manage our busise effectively in a rapidly changing market, and ifve are unable to retain our
current personnel and hire additional personnel, ouability to develop and successfully market our poducts could be harmed

We believe our future success will depend in layge upon our ability to attract and retain higbkjlled managerial, engineering, sales
and marketing personnel. We believe that our fusueeess will be dependent on retaining the sesvo€eur key personnel, developing their
successors and certain internal processes to reduceliance on specific individuals, and on prypenanaging the transition of key roles
when they occur. There is currently a shortageualified personnel with significant experiencelie tlesign, development, manufacturing,
marketing and sales of analog and mixed-signal liCparticular, there is a shortage of engineers ate familiar with the intricacies of the
design and manufacturability of analog elementd,@mpetition for such personnel is intense. Oyrtkehnical personnel represent a
significant asset and serve as the primary sownceur technological and product innovations. Wemet be successful in attracting and
retaining sufficient numbers of technical personinedupport our anticipated growth. The loss of ahgur key employees or the inability to
attract or retain qualified personnel both in th@teld States and internationally, including engisesales, applications and marketing
personnel, could delay the development and intrboluof, and negatively impact our ability to selyr products.

Any acquisitions we make could disrupt our businesand harm our financial condition

As part of our growth and product diversificatidragegy, we continue to evaluate opportunitiesciquére other businesses, intellectual
property or technologies that would complementaurent offerings, expand the breadth of our marketenhance our technical capabilities.
The acquisitions that we have made and may malteeifuture entail a number of risks that could mally and adversely affect our business
and operating results, including:

« Problems integrating the acquired operations, teldgies or products with our existing business pradiucts;
» Diversion of management'’s time and attention framaore business;

» Need for financial resources above our plannedsiment levels;

« Difficulties in retaining business relationshipgiwsuppliers and customers of the acquired company;

« Risks associated with entering markets in whicHag& prior experience;

» Risks associated with the transfer of licensesi@lectual property;

« Acquisition-related disputes, including disputegiogarn-outs and escrows;

« Potential loss of key employees of the acquiredpamy; and
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Potential impairment of related goodwill and intdolg assets.

Future acquisitions also could cause us to incht decontingent liabilities or cause us to issgeity securities that could negatively
impact the ownership percentages of existing sluddels.

Our stock price may be volatile

The market price of our common stock has been l®iatthe past and may be volatile in the futdfiee market price of our common
stock may be significantly affected by the follogifactors:

Actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;
Changes in financial estimates by securities atsatysour failure to perform in line with such esétes;
Changes in market valuations of other technologyganies, particularly semiconductor companies;

Announcements by us or our competitors of significachnical innovations, acquisitions, strategidiperships, joint ventures or
capital commitments;

Introduction of technologies or product enhancemémit reduce the need for our products;
The loss of, or decrease in sales to, one or meyekstomers;

A large sale of stock by a significant shareholder;

Dilution from the issuance of our stock in conneetwith acquisitions;

The addition or removal of our stock to or fromtack index fund;

Departures of key personnel; and

The required expensing of stock options.

The stock market has experienced extreme volatily often has been unrelated to the performahparticular companies. These mai
fluctuations may cause our stock price to fall rdigss of our performance.

Most of our current manufacturers, assemblers, tesservice providers and customers are concentrated the same geographic region,
which increases the risk that a natural disaster, gdemic, labor strike, war or political unrest could disrupt our operations or sales

Most of TSMC'’s foundries and one of our assembly &est subcontractor’s sites are primarily locate@aiwan and our other assembly
and test subcontractors are located in the Parificregion. In addition, many of our customerstipatarly mobile handset manufacturers, are
located in the Pacific Rim region. The risk of barakes in Taiwan and the Pacific Rim region isigicant due to the proximity of major
earthquake fault lines in the area. We are noeatlyy covered by insurance against business disruptused by earthquakes as such insul
is not currently available on terms that we beliave commercially reasonable. Earthquakes, fioeding, lack of water or other natural
disasters, an epidemic, political unrest, war, tatokes or work stoppages in countries wheresamniconductor manufacturers, assembler:
test subcontractors are located, likely would reisuthe disruption of our foundry, assembly ot tspacity. There can be no assurance that
such alternate capacity could be obtained on fédlerterms, if at all.
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A natural disaster, epidemic, labor strike, wapolitical unrest where our customers’ facilitieg éscated would likely reduce our sales to
such customers. For example, Samsung is basedith 8orea and represented 11% of our revenuesglfiscal 2006. North Korea'’s
geopolitical maneuverings have created unrest. 8ooést could create economic uncertainty or inkybcould escalate to war or otherwise
adversely affect South Korea and our South Koreatomers and reduce our sales to such customeich) wbuld materially and adversely
affect our operating results. In addition, a siguaifit portion of the assembly and testing of oubitechandset products occurs in South Korea.
Any disruption resulting from these events coukbatause significant delays in shipments of oudpects until we are able to shift our
manufacturing, assembling or testing from the affésubcontractor to another third-party vendor.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual propety, which would negatively affect our ability to canpete

Our products rely on our proprietary technologyd are expect that future technological advances rbgdes will be critical to sustain
market acceptance of our products. Therefore, Weuethat the protection of our intellectual prayeights is and will continue to be
important to the success of our business. We melg combination of patent, copyright, trademark &iade secret laws and restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual propertyhtgy We also enter into confidentiality or licermggeements with our employees, consultants,
intellectual property providers and business pastrend control access to and distribution of aauinentation and other proprietary
information. Despite these efforts, unauthorizedigs may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain asel aur proprietary technology. Monitoring
unauthorized use of our technology is difficultdame cannot be certain that the steps we have taltlieprevent unauthorized use of our
technology, particularly in foreign countries whée laws may not protect our proprietary rightudly as in the United States. We cannot be
certain that patents will be issued as a resubuofpending applications nor can we be certainahgtissued patents would protect or benefit us
or give us adequate protection from competing petsll-or example, issued patents may be circumgeanrtehallenged and declared invalic
unenforceable. We also cannot be certain that tliérnot develop effective competing technologiestheir own.

The semiconductor manufacturing process is highlyamplex and, from time to time, manufacturing yieldsmay fall below our
expectations, which could result in our inability b satisfy demand for our products in a timely manne

The manufacture of our products is a highly compaled technologically demanding process. Althoughweek closely with our foundrie
to minimize the likelihood of reduced manufacturinglds, our foundries from time to time have expeced lower than anticipated
manufacturing yields. Changes in manufacturing gsees or the inadvertent use of defective or cdntted materials by our foundries could
result in lower than anticipated manufacturing ggebr unacceptable performance deficiencies, winetd lower our gross profits. If our
foundries fail to deliver fabricated silicon wafafsatisfactory quality in a timely manner, welsié unable to meet our customedemand fo
our products in a timely manner, which would adebraffect our operating results and damage outocusr relationships.

We depend on our customers to support our productand some of our customers offer competing products

Our products are currently used by our customepsdaduce modems, telephony equipment, mobile hasdsetworking equipment and a
broad range of other devices. We rely on our custsrto provide hardware, software, intellectualperty indemnification and other technical
support for the products supplied by our customémmur customers do not provide the required fiomality or if our customers do not provide
satisfactory support for their products, the dem@andhese devices that incorporate our productg diminish or we may otherwise be
materially adversely affected. Any reduction in theemand for these devices would significantly redoar revenues.
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In certain products such as the DAA, some of ogtamers (including Agere Systems) offer their owmpetitive products. These
customers may find it advantageous to support their offerings in the marketplace in lieu of promgtour products.

We could seek to raise additional capital in the fuure through the issuance of equity or debt securigs, but additional capital may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all

We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalamtsinvestments will be sufficient to meet our king capital needs, capital
expenditures, investment requirements and commirfenat least the next 12 months. However, jitdssible that we may need to raise
additional funds to finance our activities or teifate acquisitions of other businesses, produntsllectual property or technologies. We
believe we could raise these funds, if neededgeling equity or debt securities to the public @stelected investors. In addition, even though
we may not need additional funds, we may still elecsell additional equity or debt securities btain credit facilities for other reasons.
However, we may not be able to obtain additionatiion favorable terms, or at all. If we decidestige additional funds by issuing equity or
convertible debt securities, the ownership peragrgaf existing shareholders would be reduced.

We are a relatively small company with limited resarces compared to some of our current and potentiatompetitors and we may not
be able to compete effectively and increase markehare

Some of our current and potential competitors Hamger operating histories, significantly greatesources and name recognition and a
larger base of customers than we have. As a reélsaie competitors may have greater credibilityhwitir existing and potential customers.
They also may be able to adopt more aggressivangraplicies and devote greater resources to theldpment, promotion and sale of their
products than we can to ours. In addition, someuofcurrent and potential competitors have alrezstgblished supplier or joint development
relationships with the decision makers at our mirog potential customers. These competitors maghihe to leverage their existing
relationships to discourage their customers fromelpasing products from us or persuade them to cemar products with their products. Our
competitors may also offer bundled chipset kit mgements offering a more complete product despéeaechnical merits or advantages of our
products. These competitors may elect not to sugporproducts which could complicate our salesrédf These and other competitive
pressures may prevent us from competing succegsfgdinst current or future competitors, and magenely harm our business. Competiti
could decrease our prices, reduce our sales, lowegross profits or decrease our market share.

Provisions in our charter documents and Delaware M could prevent, delay or impede a change in conttef us and may reduce the
market price of our common stock

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation amdaws could have the effect of discouraging, delgyr preventing a merger or
acquisition that a stockholder may consider favierabor example, our certificate of incorporatiordadylaws provide for:

< The division of our Board of Directors into thrdasses to be elected on a staggered basis, osecelels year;

The ability of our Board of Directors to issue sgof our preferred stock in one or more seriebawit further authorization of our
stockholders;

A prohibition on stockholder action by written cens,
« Elimination of the right of stockholders to calspecial meeting of stockholders;

« A requirement that stockholders provide advance&eatf any stockholder nominations of director@ny proposal of new business to
be considered at any meeting of stockholders; and
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« Arequirement that a supermajority vote be obtaiioe@imend or repeal certain provisions of our fiedtie of incorporation.

We also are subject to the atakeover laws of Delaware which may discouragegydel prevent someone from acquiring or mergind
us, which may adversely affect the market pricewafcommon stock.

Risks related to our industry
We are subject to the cyclical nature of the semicwluctor industry, which has been subject to signitiant fluctuations

The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical ardtharacterized by constant and rapid technologltahge, rapid product obsolescence
and price erosion, evolving standards, short prolifeccycles and wide fluctuations in product slyppnd demand. The industry has
experienced significant fluctuations, often conadawith, or in anticipation of, maturing productctss and new product introductions of both
semiconductor companies’ and their customers’ prtsdand fluctuations in general economic conditions

Downturns have been characterized by diminishedymodemand, production overcapacity, high inventevels and accelerated erosion
of average selling prices. For example, in fis€é) 2, the semiconductor industry suffered a downtlua to reductions in the actual unit sales
of personal computers and wireless phones as cehpaiprevious robust forecasts. This downturnltedun a material adverse effect on our
business and operating results in fiscal 2001.

Upturns have been characterized by increased praeéutand and production capacity constraints cteagencreased competition for
access to third-party foundry, assembly and tgzicigy. We are dependent on the availability ofscgpacity to manufacture, assemble and
test our ICs. None of our third-party foundry, asbé or test subcontractors have provided assusathee adequate capacity will be available
to us.

The average selling prices of our products could deease rapidly which may negatively impact our reveues and gross profits

We may experience substantial period-to-periodt@lations in future operating results due to thesieroof our average selling prices,
particularly for mobile handset products. We haaguced the average unit price of our products fitigation of or in response to competitive
pricing pressures, new product introductions bypmugur competitors and other factors. If we areblm#o offset any such reductions in our
average selling prices by increasing our salesmel) increasing our sales content per applicatioeducing production costs, our gross
profits and revenues will suffer. To maintain owogs profit percentage, we will need to develop iatrdduce new products and product
enhancements on a timely basis and continuallyceedur costs. Our failure to do so would causerexenues and gross profit percentage to
decline.
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Competition within the numerous markets we target nay reduce sales of our products and reduce our masdt share

The markets for semiconductors in general, andniged-signal ICs in particular, are intensely cotitpe. We expect that the market for
our products will continually evolve and will bebject to rapid technological change. In additichwe target and supply products to nume
markets and applications, we face competition feoralatively large number of competitors. We corapeith Agere Systems, Atmel, Analog
Devices, Broadcom, Conexant, Cypress, Epson, Fakgdeujitsu, Infineon Technologies, Legerity, Maxintegrated Products, MediaTek,
Microchip, National Semiconductor, NXP SemicondustdRenesas, RF Micro Devices, Semtech, SkyworkdiSos, Texas Instruments,
Vectron International and others. We expect to famapetition in the future from our current compms, other manufacturers and designel
semiconductors, and start-up semiconductor desigipanies. Some of our customers, such as Agerer8gsind Intel, are also large,
established semiconductor suppliers. Our saleadsapport of these customers may enable themcanie a source of competition to us,
despite our efforts to protect our intellectualgetty rights. As the markets for communicationsdpicis grow, we also may face competition
from traditional communications device companidsede companies may enter the mixed-signal semictodonarket by introducing their
own ICs or by entering into strategic relationshipth or acquiring other existing providers of seomductor products. In addition, large
companies may restructure their operations to ersgparate companies or may acquire new busintegese focused on providing the types
of products we produce or acquire our customers.

Our products must conform to industry standards andtechnology in order to be accepted by end users aur markets

Generally, our products comprise only a part oégick. All components of such devices must unifgradmply with industry standards
order to operate efficiently together. We depend¢@mpanies that provide other components of thécdswo support prevailing industry
standards. Many of these companies are significéantjer and more influential in affecting indusstandards than we are. Some industry
standards may not be widely adopted or implementdfdrmly, and competing standards may emergerttzat be preferred by our customers
or end users. If larger companies do not suppersime industry standards that we do, or if comgetiandards emerge, market acceptance of
our products could be adversely affected which @dwdrm our business.

Products for communications applications are baseididustry standards that are continually evolvirgr example, GSM mobile
handsets now commonly use the GPRS specificatioarfabling data communications, but there is aelacating trend toward the EDGE
protocol. Other suppliers, including us, are noveidiig mobile handset devices utilizing the EDGEBtpcol to support higher data
communication rates on GSM networks. In additietain suppliers are now offering mobile handseias utilizing the WCDMA protocol
to support higher data communication rates on WCDMAvorks. We do not currently have a WCDMA moligadset product. Our ability to
compete in the future will depend on our abilityidentify and ensure compliance with these evolimystry standards. The emergence of
industry standards could render our products inadibfe with products developed by other suppliéisa result, we could be required to in
significant time and effort and to incur signifitaxpense to redesign our products to ensure cang@iwith relevant standards. If our prodi
are not in compliance with prevailing industry stards for a significant period of time, we couldssopportunities to achieve crucial design
wins.

Our pursuit of necessary technological advancesnegyire substantial time and expense. We may @subcessful in developing or
using new technologies or in developing new pragloctproduct enhancements that achieve market e If our ICs fail to achieve mar
acceptance, our growth prospects, operating reasnttscompetitive position could be adversely aéfdct
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Available Information

Our internet website address is http://www.silatis.cOur annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly répon Form 109, current reports @
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filediori$hed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of3beurities Exchange Act of 1934 are
available through the investor relations page ofioternet website free of charge as soon as reddppracticable after we electronically file
such material with, or furnish it to, the Secustind Exchange Commission (SEC). Our internet wesbsid the information contained therein
or connected thereto are not intended to be incated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

ltem 2. Properties

Our primary facilities, housing engineering, sadesl marketing, administration and test operatiars)ocated in Austin, Texas. These
facilities consist of approximately 220,000 squiaet of leased floor space with lease terms expigitivarious dates through 2013. In addition
to these properties, we lease smaller facilitiegirous locations throughout the United StatesnghFrance, Germany, India, Japan, Portugal,
South Korea, Singapore, Taiwan and the United Kangdor engineering, sales and marketing, adminisgand manufacturing support
activities.

In fiscal 2006, we entered into a lease agreenwerd facility in Austin, Texas for a new corporatadquarters. We have relocated most
of our Austin employees to the new facility andezad into a sublease agreement for the vacateeldéasilities for the remaining lease period.

We believe that these facilities are suitable ahebaate to meet our current operating needs.

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings
Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action complaintifdations of U.S. federal securities laws was filedhe United States District Court 1
the Southern District of New York against us, foliour officers individually and the three investméanking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connecti@h wur initial public offering of common stock. &Consolidated Amended Complaint
alleges that the registration statement and pragpdar our initial public offering did not discleghat (1) the underwriters solicited and
received additional, excessive and undisclosed dseioms from certain investors, and (2) the unditeng had agreed to allocate shares of the
offering in exchange for a commitment from the oustrs to purchase additional shares in the aftéehat pre-determined higher prices. The
action seeks damages in an unspecified amountsamelrg coordinated with approximately 300 otherlyeidentical actions filed against otl
companies. A court order dated October 9, 2002 idied without prejudice our four officers who hakb named individually. On
February 19, 2003, the Court denied the motiorigmids the complaint against us. On October 13420& Court certified a class in six of 1
approximately 300 other nearly identical actiom (tfocus cases”) and noted that the decisionténited to provide strong guidance to all
parties regarding class certification in the rermgjrcases. The Underwriter Defendants appealedébision and the Second Circuit vacated
the District Court’s decision granting class cétéfion in those six cases on December 5, 200&titta have not yet moved to certify a class
in the Silicon Laboratories case.

30




We have approved a settlement agreement and relgtedments which set forth the terms of a setit¢ilmetween us, the plaintiff class
and the vast majority of the other approximatel® 8&uer defendants. It is unclear what impacSeond Circuit’s decision vacating class
certification in the six focus cases will have be settlement, which has not yet been finally apgddy the Court. On December 14, 2006,
Judge Scheindlin held a hearing. Plaintiffs infodntiee Court that they planned to file a petitionrghearing and rehearing by the full court.
The Court stayed all proceedings, including a degisn final approval of the settlement and any agmeents of the complaints, pending the
Second Circuit’s decision on Plaintiffs’ petitioorfrehearing. Plaintiffs filed the petition for edring and rehearing by the full court on
January 5, 2007.

Pursuant to the settlement and related agreenittits,settlement receives final approval by thei€ahe settlement provides for a
release of us and the individual defendants foctimeluct alleged in the action to be wrongful. Wauld agree to undertake certain
responsibilities, including agreeing to assign awet assert, or release certain potential claimsnay have against our underwriters. The
settlement agreement also provides a guaranteedascof $1 billion to plaintiffs for the casesaghg to all of the approximately 300 issuers.
To the extent that the underwriter defendantsesattlof the cases for at least $1 billion, no paptrwill be required under the issuers’
settlement agreement. To the extent that the underwlefendants settle for less than $1 billidve issuers are required to make up the
difference. On April 20, 2006, JPMorgan Chase &edRlaintiffs reached a preliminary agreement tdestor $425 million. The JPMorgan
Chase preliminary agreement has not yet been apgroy the Court. In an amendment to the issuetéseent agreement, the issuarsurer:
agreed that the JP Morgan Chase preliminary agneeim@pproved, will only offset the insurers’ ajtion to cover the remainder of the
Plaintiffs’ guaranteed $1 billion recovery by 50% of the valtithe JP Morgan Chase settlement, or $212.5 milliderefore, if the JP Morg
Chase preliminary agreement to settle is preliniynand then finally approved by the Court, thea thaximum amount that the issuers inst
will be potentially liable for is $787.5 million. dWvever, future settlements with other underwriteosild further reduce that liability. It is
unclear what impact the Second Circuit’s decisiapating class certification in the focus cases élle on the JP Morgan Chase preliminary
agreement.

We anticipate that our potential financial obligatito plaintiffs pursuant to the terms of the issusettlement agreement and related
agreements will be covered by existing insurance.ané not aware of any material limitations onakpected recovery of any potential
financial obligation to plaintiffs from our insure carriers. Our carriers appear to be solventwandre not aware of any uncertainties as t
legal sufficiency of an insurance claim with reggecany recovery by plaintiffs. Therefore, we dit expect that the settlement would involve
any material payment by us. Furthermore, eveniifimsurance was unavailable due to insurer insayem otherwise, we expect that our
maximum financial obligation to plaintiffs pursudotthe settlement agreement would be approxim&elg million. However, if the JPMorg
Chase settlement is preliminarily and then finalpproved, our maximum financial obligation to thaimtiffs pursuant to the settlement
agreement would be approximately $2.7 million.

There is no assurance that the Court will grarglfapproval to the issuers’ settlement. If thelesetént agreement is not approved and we
are found liable, we are unable to estimate oriptéde potential damages that might be awarde@tidr such damages would be greater than
our insurance coverage, or whether the outcomeduvuave a material impact on our results of openatir financial position.
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Patent and Copyright Infringement Litigatit

On December 14, 2006, Analog Devices, Inc. (An@egices), a Massachusetts corporation, filed auldvesjainst us, in the United
States District Court in the District of Massachtsselleging infringement of United States Patéh0¥5,329, 6,262,600, 6,525,566, 6,903,578
and 6,873,065, and copyright infringement of certanalog Devices datasheets. The lawsuit relatesit&si843x and Si844x family of digital
isolator products and alleges that the infringemea and continues to be willful. At this time, wennot estimate the outcome of this matte
resulting financial impact to us, if any.

Other Litigation

We are involved in various other legal proceedithigé have arisen in the normal course of businddgle the ultimate results of these
matters cannot be predicted with certainty, we aloexpect them to have a material adverse effetih@®rconsolidated financial position or
results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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Part Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stokholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seatties
Market Information and Holders

Our registration statement (Registration No. 33853) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amenedating to our initial public offerin
of our common stock became effective on March 2802 Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ NwtidMarket (NASDAQ) under
the symbol “SLAB”. The table below shows the higtddow per-share sales prices of our common stockhke periods indicated, as reported
by NASDAQ. As of January 31, 2007, there were 1@®@érs of record of our common stock.

High Low

Fiscal Year 200!

First Quarte $36.6C $26.8¢

Second Quarte 31.4z 24.62

Third Quartel 33.9¢ 25.4¢€

Fourth Quarte 41.8€ 26.51
Fiscal Year 200!

First Quarte $56.06 $36.2C

Second Quarte 60.0C 31.3C

Third Quartel 38.7¢ 28.45

Fourth Quarte 36.5E 29.77

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock and we do not intend to pay dastiends in the foreseeable
future. We currently expect to retain any futuren@ags to fund the operation and expansion of ausiress.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below shows a comparison of tative total stockholder returns for an investmien$ilicon Laboratories Inc.
common stock, the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Inéex] the NASDAQ Electronic Components Index.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG SILICON LABORATORIES INC.,
THE NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S.) INDEX
AND THE NASDAQ ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS INDEX
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-- @ -- NASDACI ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS

(1) The graph assumes that $100 was investedrinammon stock and in each index at the marketotm December 29, 2001, and that all
dividends were reinvested. No cash dividends haea ldeclared on our common stock.

(2) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthoot be considered indicative of future stockholegurns.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
The following table summarizes repurchases of oanmroon stock during the three months ended DeceBhe006:

Total Number of Approximate
Shares Purchased Dollar Value of
as Part of Publicly Shares that May
Average Price Paid Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of Announced Plans Under the Plans or
Period Shares Purchased(1 per Share or Programs Programs
October 1, 200~
October 28, 200 321,68¢ $31.0€ 320,78( $50,000,00!
October 29, 2006 —
November 25, 200 524 $34.2C — $50,000,00!
November 26, 200—
December 30, 200 3,454 $34.97 — $50,000,00!
Total 325,66¢ $31.11 320,78(

(1) Includes 4,886 shares of our common stock withbglds to satisfy employee tax obligations uponingsf restricted stock units (RSU
granted under our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan.

On July 24, 2006, our Board of Directors authoriagarogram to repurchase up to $100 million of@mmon stock over a twelve-month
period beginning July 24, 2006 and ending July2297. The program allows for repurchases to be rirattee open market subject to market
conditions, applicable legal requirements and ofhetors.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Date

The selected consolidated balance sheet datafissalfyear ended 2006 and 2005 and the selectesblidated statements of income data
for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 have been derivenh fthe audited consolidated financial statemerdsidted in this Form 10-K. The selected
consolidated balance sheet data as of fiscal yebrd2004, 2003 and 2002 and the selected conwalidtatements of income data for fiscal
2003 and 2002 have been derived from audited citaded financial statements not included in thisnrd0-K. You should read this selected
consolidated financial data in conjunction with “Megement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdition and Results of Operations,” our
consolidated financial statements and the notéisoge statements included in this Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share datz

Consolidated Statements of Income C

Revenue: $464,597 $425,68¢ $456,22F $325,30¢ $182,01¢
Operating incom 29,1151) 58,01C 106,68~ 65,41¢ 30,98¢
Net income 31,15¢(1) 47,50¢ 76,69: 44,71¢ 20,717
Net income per shar
Basic $ 056(1)% 08 $ 149 $ 092 $ 044
Diluted $ 0541)% 08 $ 139 $ 08 $ 041
Weightec-average common shares outstand
Basic 55,34¢ 53,39¢ 51,471 48,85( 47,41¢
Diluted 57,201 55,48t 54,98¢ 52,28¢ 50,811

Consolidated Balance Sheet D:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term

investment: $386,29: $363,71( $277,10¢ $190,31: $115,16¢
Working capital 402,08t 369,30« 294,557 202,71 122,35«
Total asset 686,99t 601,06  481,12%(2) 378,09t 197,06t
Long-term obligations and other liabiliti¢ 16,691 7,41¢€ 2,57C 9,962 949
Total stockholder equity 568,68: 498,04¢ 399,48¢ 287,20¢ 155,72z

(1) As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidatedrftial statements, effective January 1, 2006,haaged our method of accounting for stock-
based compensation to conform to Statement of EiabAccounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Bd3agment”.

(2) Total assets for the year ended January 1, 2008akeed $3.3 million due to the reclassificatioestimated credits for price protection to
conform to the current year presentation.
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of financiahdition and results of operations should be readonjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes theretouidet! elsewhere in this report. This discussionaiostforwarc-looking statements. Please ¢
the “Cautionary Statement” and “Risk Factors” abof@r discussions of the uncertainties, risks ansLiagptions associated with these
statements. Our fiscal year-end financial reportpegiods are a 52- or 53- week year ending on thiei8lay closest to December 31st. Fiscal
years 2006, 2005 and 2004 were-week years and ended December 30, 2006, Decertib2035 and January 1, 2005, respectively.

Overview

We design and develop proprietary, analog-intenshired-signal integrated circuits (ICs) for a ltdange of applications. Mixed-signal
ICs are electronic components that convert realdvamalog signals, such as sound and radio wanesdigital signals that electronic products
can process. Therefore, mixed-signal ICs are atiftomponents in a broad range of applicationsvargety of markets, including
communications, consumer, industrial, automotivedital and power management. Our major customehsgda Agere Systems, Arima, Chi
Mei, Compal, LG Electronics, Motorola, Sagem, Samgs( ellabs and Thomson.

Our company was founded in 1996. Our business tmgngsince our inception, as reflected by our eiypgéoheadcount, which increased
to 742 at the end of fiscal 2006, from 651 at the ef fiscal 2005 and 588 employees at the engscéf 2004. As a “fabless” semiconductor
company, we rely on third-party semiconductor fedtars in Asia, and to a lesser extent the UnitateS, to manufacture the silicon wafers
that reflect our IC designs. Each wafer containmerous die, which are cut from the wafer to creathip for an IC. We rely on thirparties ir
Asia to assemble, package, and, in the substanégrity of cases, test these devices and shigtheigs to our customers. We have increased
the portion of testing performed by such third egrtwhich facilitates faster delivery of produtdour customers (particularly those located in
Asia), shorter production cycle times, lower ilv@gtrequirements, lower costs and increased flbikif test capacity.

Our product set has expanded to a broad portfatipeting mobile handset and broad-based mixed4sigapdications. Our expertise in
analog-intensive, high-performance, mixed-signa é@ables us to develop highly differentiated sohs that address multiple markets. For
example, our silicon DAA product family is optimizéor the PC modem market; our ISOmodem familyrobedded modems has been widely
adopted by satellite set-top box manufacturersRsaLIC products have gained market share in YesiRlential equipment; and our Aero
GSM/GPRS transceiver family is being shipped in ieolandsets worldwide. We continue to introducet generation ICs with added
functionality and further integration. In fiscal@® we introduced the Aero lled single-chip EDG&hsceiver with a digital interface, a family
of highly integrated FM transmitters, a family afidal isolator products, a Power over Ethernettoater and expanded our MCU portfolio
with the addition of new USB MCUs, Embedded Ethesmdutions, new small form factor devices andraifia of highly-integrated MCUs
designed specifically for automotive electronicerdugh acquisitions and internal development efforte have continued to further diversify
our product portfolio. We plan to continue to ituze products that increase the content we prdeidexisting applications and enable us to
serve markets we do not currently address, theegpginding our total available market opportunity.
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We group our products into two categories, mobéedset products and broad-based mixed-signal praddobile handset products
include our Aero Transceivers, AeroFONE single-gitipne, Power Amplifiers (PA), and to the exterbirporated into handsets, FM
broadcast radio tuners and FM transmitters. Bras® mixed-signal products include our silicon DAZQmodem embedded modems,
ProSLIC subscriber line interface circuits, microtoller products, DSL AFE, SiPHY optical physi¢ayer transceivers, precision clock &
data recovery ICs (CDRs), XM satellite radio turtbgjtal power products, Power over Ethernet cdlgrposcillators (XOs), voltageentrolled
oscillators (VCXOs), SiRX satellite receivers, Rhghesizers and to the extent incorporated intcmemdset applications, FM broadcast radio
tuners and FM transmitters.

During fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, Samsung, reptedel 1%, 14% and 17% of our revenues, respectiigyother single end customer
accounted for more than 10% of our revenues incditlyese years. In addition to direct sales toamsts, some of our end customers purchase
products indirectly from us through distributorglamontract manufacturers. An end customer purchabkimugh a contract manufacturer
typically instructs such contract manufacturer iéan our products and incorporate such productis ether components for sale by such
contract manufacturer to the end customer. Althouglactually sell the products to, and are paidy distributors and contract
manufacturers, we refer to such end customer asustomer. One of our distributors, Edom Technologgresented 38% of our fiscal 2006
revenues. Edom and another distributor, Uniquegtesented 29% and 11% of our fiscal 2005 reverames20% and 12% of our fiscal 2004
revenues, respectively. There were no other digwils or contract manufacturers that accountednfane than 10% of our revenues in fiscal
2006, 2005 or 2004.

The percentage of our revenues derived from custloeated outside of the United States was 89fisdal 2006, 91% in fiscal 2005 a
89% in fiscal 2004, which reflects our product @adtomer diversification and market penetrationdiar products, as many of our mobile
handset, and increasingly, broad-based mixed-sigrsbmers manufacture and design their produdsia. All of our revenues to date have
been denominated in U.S. dollars. We believe thmagpority of our revenues will continue to be dedvfrom customers outside of the United
States.

The sales cycle for the test and evaluation ofiGsrcan range from one month to 12 months or mmeadditional three to six months or
more are usually required before a customer shigréficant volume of devices that incorporate t&s. Due to this lengthy sales cycle, we
typically experience a significant delay betweeruiming expenses for research and developmentedliigs general and administrative efforts,
and the generation of corresponding sales. Consdgui sales in any quarter do not occur wheneetpd, expenses and inventory levels ¢
be disproportionately high, and our operating rssior that quarter and, potentially, future quesrteould be adversely affected. Moreover, the
amount of time between initial research and devakt and commercialization of a product, if evan be substantially longer than the sales
cycle for the product. Accordingly, if we incur sténtial research and development costs withowtldping a commercially successful
product, our operating results, as well as our gngwospects, could be adversely affected.

Because many of our ICs are designed for use iawoar products such as personal computers, pengdeal recorders, set-top boxes
and mobile handsets, we expect that the demarslfgproducts will be typically subject to some dsggof seasonal demand resulting in
increased sales in the third and fourth quarteesaoh year when customers place orders to meedyaliemand. However, rapid changes ir
markets and across our product areas make ituliffior us to accurately estimate the impact ofseal factors on our business.
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Results of Operations
The following describes the line items set forttour consolidated statements of income:

Revenues. Revenues are generated almost exclusively by sélas ICs. We recognize revenue on sales wheof déifle following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehatdn arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsobaarred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonaldgured. Generally, we recognize revenue from proshles direct to customers and contract
manufacturers upon shipment. Certain of our salesnade to distributors under agreements allowartam rights of return and price
protection on products unsold by distributors. Adaogly, we defer the revenue and cost of revenusueh sales until the distributors sell the
product to the end customer. Our products typiozdiyy a one-year replacement warranty. Replacesttente been insignificant to date. Our
revenues are subject to variation from period tdopedue to the volume of shipments made withireaqa and the prices we charge for our
products. The vast majority of our revenues wegptiated at prices that reflect a discount fromliigprices for our products. These discot
are made for a variety of reasons, including: l§dtablish a relationship with a new customer,s2raincentive for customers to purchase
products in larger volumes, 3) to provide profitrgia to our distributors who resell our product4pin response to competition. In additior
a product matures, we expect that the averagegdtice for such product will decline due to theager availability of competing products.
Our ability to increase revenues in the futuredpehdent on increased demand for our establistoetligis and our ability to ship larger
volumes of those products in response to such deénaanwell as our ability to develop or acquire rraducts and subsequently achieve
customer acceptance of newly introduced products.

Cost of revenues. Cost of revenues includes the cost of purchasmigtfed silicon wafers processed by independentdioes; costs
associated with assembly, test and shipping ofetiposducts; costs of personnel and equipment agedaivith manufacturing support, logist
and quality assurance; costs of software royadtiesamortization of purchased software, otherlgdalal property license costs, and certain
acquired intangible assets; an allocated portioouofoccupancy costs; allocable depreciation dftgequipment and leasehold improveme
and impairment charges related to certain manufiacfequipment held for sale or abandoned. Genenalt depreciate equipment over four
years on a straig-line basis and leasehold improvements over thetahof the estimated useful life or the applicdblse term. Recently
introduced products tend to have higher cost oémeres per unit due to initially low production veles required by our customers and higher
costs associated with new package variations. @éyeas production volumes for a product increasdt production costs tend to decrease as
our yields improve and our semiconductor fabricatassemblers and test suppliers achieve greateomies of scale for that product.
Additionally, the cost of wafer procurement andemsbly and test services, which are significant congmts of cost of goods sold, vary
cyclically with overall demand for semiconductorslaur suppliers’ available capacity of such pradwand services.

Research and development. Research and development expense consists priroéplgrsonnel-related expenses, including stock
compensation, new product mask, wafer, packagidgest costs, external consulting and servicesgcastortization of purchased software,
equipment tooling, equipment depreciation, amatitizeof acquired intangible assets, acquired reteand development resulting from
acquisitions, as well as an allocated portion afancupancy costs for such operations. We genedallyeciate our research and development
equipment over four years and amortize our purahaséiware from computer-aided design tool vendwes the shorter of the estimated
useful life or the license term. Research and agreént activities include the design of new produagtd software, refinement of existing
products and design of test methodologies to ermurgliance with required specifications.
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Selling, general and administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense canpisinarily of personnel-related expenses,
including stock compensation, related allocabldiporof our occupancy costs, sales commissionsdepgendent sales representatives,
applications engineering support, professional,fdeectors’ and officers’ liability insurance, jeat litigation legal fees, reserves for bad debt,
costs related to relocating our headquarters amet gromotional and marketing expenses.

In-process research and development. In-process research and development representgeddechnology resulting from business
combinations that has not achieved technologiaibélity and has no alternative future use. Thessts are expensed on the date of
acquisition.

Interest income. Interest income reflects interest earned on avetagk, cash equivalents and investment balancegewarally invest
in tax-exempt short-term investments.

Interest expense. Interest expense consists of interest on our stmationg-term obligations.

Other income (expense), net. Other income (expense), net reflects foreign cwyeemeasurement adjustments and gains on the
disposal of fixed assets.

Provision for Income Taxes. We accrue a provision for domestic and foreign inedax at the applicable statutory rates adjusied f
non-deductible expenses, including stock compemsatesearch and development tax credits and sttareome from tax-exempt short-term
investments.

The following table sets forth our consolidatedesteents of income data as a percentage of revdoutee periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 30 December 31 January 1,
2006 2005 2005

Revenues 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of revenue 44.8 45.6 45.2
Gross profit 55.2 54.4 54.8
Operating expense

Research and developm: 26.2 23.8 17.1

Selling, general and administrati 22.C 17.0 14.3

In-process research and developn 0.7 — —
Operating expenses 48.9 40.8 314
Operating incom: 6.3 13.6 234
Other income (expense

Interest incom 29 2.0 0.7

Interest expens (0.2 (0.2) (0.2)

Other income (expense), net 0.2 (0.1) 0.4
Income before income tax 9.2 15.4 244
Provision for income taxes 2.5 4.2 7.6
Net income 6.7% 11.2% 16.8%
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Comparison of Fiscal 2006 to Fiscal 20C

Revenues
Year Ended
December 30 December 31
%
2006 2005 Change Chaonge
(in millions)
Mobile Handset: $206.5 $188.¢ $17.9 9.5%
Broad-Based Mixed-Signal 258.1 237.1 21.0 8.9
Total $464.¢ $425.7 $38.9 9.1%

Mobile Handsets: The growth in the sales of our mobile handsetlpcts in fiscal 2006 was primarily driven by reuea from our FM
broadcast radio tuners. This growth was offsetairt py a decline in revenues from our Aero Trangereiamily of products. Unit volumes of
our mobile handset products increased compareaddal 2005 by 49.7%. This increase was offset i Imadeclining average selling prices of
26.9%, partially due to product transitions.

Broad-Based Mixed-Signal: The growth in the sales of our broad-based mbigdal products in fiscal 2006 was primarily driviey
increased revenues from our: (1) ProSLIC prodwediecating growth in demand in the VolP market; f#xrocontroller products; and (3) FM
broadcast radio tuners for non-handset applicati®ash growth was offset in part by a decline weraies from our modem products. Unit
volumes of our broad-based mixed-signal produatseissed compared to fiscal 2005 by 3.8%. Averaljege@rices increased by 4.8%.

As our products become more mature, we expectgereénce decreases in average selling prices ifuthee. Our revenues will be
dependent on our ability to increase sales voluanesintroduce higher priced, next generation presland product extensions.

Gross profit

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
%
2006 2005 Change Chaonge
(in millions)
Gross profil $256.4 $231.¢ $24.6 10.6%
Percent of revenu 55.2% 54.4%

The increase in gross profit in fiscal 2006 wasnariily due to increased revenues and product mixnvely experience declines in the
average selling prices of our mobile handset prtsdacd certain of our broad-based mixed-signalyctsd This downward pressure on gross
profit as a percentage of revenues may be offsttet@xtent we are able to: 1) introduce highergimanew products and gain market share
our ICs; or 2) achieve lower production costs fram wafer foundries and third-party assembly aistisab-contractors.

Research and development

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
%
2006 2005 Change Chaonge
(in millions)
Research and developmt $121.7 $101.2 $20.5 20.2%
Percent of revenu 26.2% 23.8%
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The increase in research and development expetisedh 2006 was principally due to increases df:%16.5 million for stock
compensation expense resulting from our adoptidfirdncial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statehof Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) 123 (revised 2004), “Share-BasgthEnt”, (SFAS 123R) and the issuance of restristedk awards; (2) $9.4 million for
other personnel-related expenses; and (3) $3.fomiibr equipment depreciation, offset by a $13illiom charge for acquired research and
development costs related to the acquisition a€&@il MAGIKE in fiscal 2005. Significant recent déepment projects include the Aero lled
single-chip EDGE transceiver with a digital intexaa family of highly integrated FM transmittevsiy Power over Ethernet controller and the
expansion of our MCU portfolio. These productsiarthe early stages of customer adoption. We exihettresearch and development expense
will increase in absolute dollars in future peri@dswe continue to increase our staffing and aassticosts to pursue additional new product
development opportunities, and may fluctuate asragmtage of revenues due to changes in salehatithing of certain expensive items
related to new product development initiatives hsag engineering mask and wafer costs.

Selling, general and administrative

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
%
2006 2005 Change Chaonge
(in millions)
Selling, general and administrati $102.4 $72.6 $29.8 41.1%
Percent of revenu 22.0% 17.C%

The increase in selling, general and administragixgense in fiscal 2006 was principally due toéases of: (1) $14.8 million for stock
compensation expense; (2) $8.2 million for othaspenel-related expenses; (3) $3.0 million relatedtlocating our corporate headquarters;
and (4) $1.1 million of higher legal fees relateditigation. We expect that selling, general adchaistrative expense will increase in absolute
dollars in future periods as we continue to expaumdsales channels, marketing applications efomts administrative infrastructure.
| n-process research and development

In-process research and development (IPR&D) waz $dlion in fiscal 2006. The IPR&D was relateddor acquisitions of StackCom
and Silembia. The Company doesn’t expect the prsdierived from these technologies to begin tordauie to revenues prior to fiscal 2007.

There was no IPR&D in fiscal 2005.

Interest income

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
2006 2005 Change
(in millions)
Interest incom $13.7 $8.3 $5.4

The increase in interest income in fiscal 2006 dizes to a greater amount of cash and stewrty investments balances and to an incree
the interest rates of the underlying instrumentsnduthe period.

Interest expense

Interest expense in fiscal 2006 was $0.9 milliompared to $0.3 million in fiscal 2005.
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Other income (expense), ne

Other income (expense), net in fiscal 2006 was 8illfon compared to $(0.3) million in fiscal 2005.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
2006 2005 Change
(in millions)
Provision for income taxe $11.6 $18.1 $(6.5)
Effective tax rate 27.1% 27.6%

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2006 was slightdwer than the effective tax rate for fiscal 2008e increases to the effective tax rate for
fiscal 2006 included the recording of stock comjagiog expense at a lower than average effectiveat@xand state income tax expense. These
increases were offset by an increase in tax-exantgrest, an increase in the foreign tax rate berseeflecrease in the non-deductible write off
of acquired and in process research and developrostg and an increase in research and developgeeatedits during fiscal 2006.

The effective tax rates for each of the periods@nged differ from the federal statutory rate d¥38ue to tax-exempt interest income, the
amount of income earned in foreign jurisdictionsewehthe tax rate may be lower than the federaltstiat rate, research and development tax
credits, state income taxes and other permanensit€he effective rate for fiscal 2006 also diffesn the federal statutory rate of 35% due to
non-deductible stock compensation expense and stookensation deductible at a rate lower thanederfl statutory tax rate.

Comparison of Fiscal 2005 to Fiscal 2004

Revenues
Year Ended
December 31 January 1,
%
2005 2005 Change Chaonge
(in millions)
Mobile Handset: $188.€ $228.6 $(40.2) (17.6%
Broac-Based Mixe-Signal 237.1 227.4 9.7 4.3
Total $425.7 $456.z $(30.5 (6.7)%

Mobile Handsets: The decline in the sales of our mobile handsedyrcts in fiscal 2005 was primarily driven by deitlg average sellin
prices of our Aero Transceiver family of produ@serage selling prices in mobile handset produetseiased year over year by 20.6%,
partially due to product transitions. This decreass offset in part by a 3.8% year over year ireeda unit volumes of our mobile handset
products.

Broad-Based Mixed-Signal: The growth in the sales of our broad-based msigdal products in fiscal 2005 was primarily drvey
increased revenues from our: (1) ProSLIC produwisd; (2) microcontroller products. Such growth wHset in part by a 10% decline in
revenue from our modem products due to declinesémage selling prices and unit volumes. Unit vadsrof broad-based mixed-signal
products increased year over year by 1.6%. In imagiaverage selling prices in this area incregseza over year by 2.6%.
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Gross profit

Year Ended
December 31
January 1, %
2005 2005 Change Change
(in millions)
Gross profil $231.€ $249.¢ $(18.1)) (7.3)%
Percent of revenu 54.4% 54.8%

The year over year decrease in gross profit doifafiscal 2005 was primarily due to the decreaseeivenues from our mobile handset
products.

Research and development

Year Ended
December 31 January 1,
%
2005 2005 Change Change
(in millions)
Research and developm $101.2 $78.1 $23.1 29.7%
Percent of revenu 23.8% 17.1%

The year over year increase in research and davelopexpense in fiscal 2005 was principally dua $13.7 million charge for acquired
research and development costs in connection witlacquisition of Silicon MAGIKE, increased staffiand associated occupancy and other
costs to pursue new product development opporésidind to continue to develop software and netmtemethodologies for newly
introduced and existing products.

Selling, general and administrative

Year Ended
December 31 January 1,
%
2005 2005 Change Change
(in millions)
Selling, general anadministrative $72.6 $65.2 $7.4 11.2%
Percent of revenu 17.0% 14.3%

The increase in selling, general and administragikgense in fiscal 2005 was principally attribuéatd: (1) an increase of approximately
$2.8 million for increased staffing and associatesits resulting from the geographical expansioounfsales support organization in Asia and
Europe; (2) $2.7 million in charges related to $hparation agreement with our former Chief Exeeu®fficer; (3) $1.0 million in charges
related to the search and hiring costs of our ca@hief Executive Officer; and (4) an increasapproximately $1.0 million for increased
staffing and associated costs related to the eimans$ our internal information technology and seeg support organization. The increase was
offset in part by a $1.9 million decline in salesranissions and bonuses due to a decline in ous.sale

Interest income

Year Ended
December 31 January 1,
2005 2005 Change
(in millions)
Interest incom $8.3 $3.1 $5.2

44




The increase in interest income in fiscal 2005 d@es to a greater amount of cash and short-ternsiments balances during the year
ended December 31, 2005 and due to an increake interest rates of the underlying instrumentsngufiscal 2005.

Interest expense
Interest expense was $0.3 million in both fiscad2@nd 2004.

Other income (expense), net

Year Ended
December 31 January 1,
2005 2005 Change
(in millions)
Other income (expense), r $(0.3) $2.1 $(2.4)

Other income (expense), in fiscal 2004 primarifffereted gains on the sale of test equipment. Noparable gains occurred in fiscal 20

Provision for income taxes

Year Ended
December 31 January 1,
2005 2005 Change
(in millions)
Provision for income taxe $18.1 $34.9 $(16.8)
Effective tax rate 27.6% 31.23%

The effective tax rate in fiscal 2005 was lowemtfiacal 2004, primarily due to the tax savingsrralignment of our financial structure
with our international operational structure, adlas an increase in tax-exempt interest income. décrease was offset by the fiscal 2005 non-
deductible acquired research and development castsred in connection with our acquisition of 8dh MAGIKE. The impact of the non-
deductible acquired research and development e@sts.3%. Excluding this charge, the tax rate wiialde been 20.3%. In addition, the
effective tax rates for each of the periods presdtffer from the federal statutory rate of 35% do the amount of income earned in foreign
jurisdictions where the tax rate may be lower ttrenfederal statutory rate, the impact of researchdevelopment tax credits, -exempt
interest income and other permanent items.

Business Outlook

We expect revenues in the first quarter of fis€@02to be in the range of $106 million to $111 oil Furthermore, we expect our dilu
net income per share to be in the range of $0.(0103.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity as of Decemb8r 2006 consisted of $386.3 million in cash, caghialents and short-term
investments. Our short-term investments consisbgrily of tax-exempt municipal bonds.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $83ilBon during fiscal 2006, compared to net castmded of $104.0 million during
fiscal 2005. Operating cash flows during fiscal @06flect our net income of $31.2 million, adjustrteeof $70.2 million for depreciation,
amortization, stock compensation, acquired andatgss research and development and tax benefiasiated with the exercise of stock
options, and a net increase in the componentsrofvotking capital of $18.1 million.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $110/8aniduring fiscal 2006, compared to net cash usiedi72.3 million during fiscal 2005.
The increase was principally due to increases 0fZsgillion in net purchases of short-term invegttseand $21.2 million for business
acquisitions, net of cash acquired, offset by @ $3illion decrease in net purchases of other assetproperty, equipment and software.

We anticipate capital expenditures of approxima$2@ to $25 million for fiscal 2007. Additionallgs part of our growth strategy, we
expect to evaluate opportunities to invest in @uire other businesses, intellectual property cnitelogies that would complement or expand
our current offerings, expand the breadth of ourketa or enhance our technical capabilities.

Net cash used in financing activities was $5.3iomllduring fiscal 2006, compared to net cash predidf $20.2 million during fiscal
2005. The decrease was principally due to paynedr#50.0 million for repurchases of our common ktivcthe recent year, offset by an
increase of $17.5 million of proceeds from the eisar of employee stock options and an increasd d@f Billion of excess tax benefits from
such exercises. In July 2006, our Board of Directarthorized a program to repurchase up to $1dmadf our common stock over a twelve-
month period in the open market.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gditions as of December 30, 2006 (in thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter
Operating lease obligations( $22,601 $ 5207 $4,74c $4,53¢ $2,91¢ $2,32C $2,874
Purchase obligations(: 68,94¢ 66,09€ 2,825 27 — — —
Other lon¢-term Obligations 3,850 — 1,05C 2,80C — — —

(1) Operating lease obligations include amounts fosdddacilities.

(2) Purchase obligations include contractual arrangésriarthe form of purchase orders with supplieresetthere is a fixed non-cancelable
payment schedule or minimum payments due with acedl delivery schedule.

Our future capital requirements will depend on méamgors, including the rate of sales growth, madazeptance of our products, the
timing and extent of research and development pigj@otential acquisitions of companies or tecbgials and the expansion of our sales and
marketing activities. We believe our existing casld short-term investment balances are sufficenteet our capital requirements through at
least the next 12 months, although we could beireduor could elect, to seek additional fundingpto that time. We may enter into
acquisitions or strategic arrangements in the &uuinich also could require us to seek additionaltgar debt financing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In March 2006, we entered into an operating legseeament and a related participation agreemene@tnlely, the “lease”) for a facility
in Austin, Texas for our corporate headquarter® [Ease has a term of seven years. The base rehefterm of the lease is an amount equ
the interest accruing on $44.3 million at 110 basists over the three-month LIBOR (which wouldapproximately $17.9 million over the
remaining term assuming LIBOR averages 5.36% dwuai term).
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We have granted certain rights and remedies tteisor in the event of certain defaults, includimg right to terminate the lease, to bring
suit to collect damages, and to compel us to pweltze facility. The lease contains other customgpyesentations, warranties, obligations,
conditions, indemnification provisions and termioatprovisions, including covenants that we shaimmain unencumbered cash and highly-
rated short-term investments of at least $75 nmildod a ratio of funded debt to earnings beforerést expense, income taxes, depreciation,
amortization, lease expense and other non-casigeh@EBITDAR) over the four prior fiscal quartefsno greater than 1.5 to 1. As of
December 30, 2006, we believe we were in compliavitteall covenants of the lease.

During the term of the lease, we have an on-gopt@n to purchase the building for a total purchaisee of approximately $44.3 million.
Alternatively, we can cause the property to be solthird parties provided we are not in defauldenthe lease. We are contingently liable for
the guaranteed residual value associated witlptiigerty in the event that the net sale proceegleas than the original financed cost of the
facility. We are contingently liable for the resadwalue guarantee associated with the lease abappately $35.3 million. To the extent that
the net proceeds generated from the sale of thigydo a third party exceed $9.0 million, we wduhave the right to receive (a) substantially
all of such excess proceeds if the sale occurs fwithe end of the term or (b) up to approxima&3$.3 million of such excess proceeds if the
sale occurs after the end of the term.

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45, “@mor’'s Accounting and Disclosure RequirementsGaarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” we detethihe the fair value associated with the guarahtesidual value was $1.0 million. The
amount was recorded in “Other assets, net” and gkienm obligations and other liabilities” in thensmlidated balance sheets and is being
amortized over the term of the lease.

We are required to periodically evaluate the exgubair value of the facility at the end of thedederm. If we determine that it is
estimable and probable that the expected fair vailide less than $44.3 million, we will ratablg@ue the loss up to a maximum of
approximately $35.3 million over the remaining keésrm. As of December 30, 2006, we have deterntimegch loss contingency accrual is not
required.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and accaogipg notes in conformity with U.S. generally actspaccounting principles requires
that we make estimates and assumptions that afffee@mounts reported. Changes in facts and cireumoss could have a significant impact on
the resulting estimated amounts included in tharfaial statements. We believe the following critmecounting policies affect our more
complex judgments and estimates. We also have ptiiies that we consider to be key accountingcpes, such as our policies for revenue
recognition, including the deferral of revenues aast of revenues on sales to distributors; howetiese policies do not meet the definition of
critical accounting estimates because they do eoérglly require us to make estimates or judgmihatsare difficult or subjective.

Allowance for doubtful accourntsWe evaluate the collectibility of our accountsai®able based on a combination of factors. In
circumstances where we are aware of a specifiomests inability to meet its financial obligatiotsus, we record a specific allowance to
reduce the net receivable to the amount we reasphalieve will be collected. For all other custamewne recognize allowances for doubtful
accounts based on a variety of factors includirgatye of the receivable, the current business @mwvient and our historical experience. If the
financial condition of our customers were to detexie or if economic conditions worsened, additi@iawances may be required in the fut
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Inventory valuation—We assess the recoverability of inventories thrathghapplication of a set of methods, assumptiosestimates. |
determining net realizable value, we write dowreimwory that may be slow moving or have some formbsfolescence, including inventory
that has aged more than nine months. We also atigistaluation of inventory when its standard eosteeds the estimated market value. We
assess the potential for any unusual customem®hased on known quality or business issues dablist reserves based on the estimated
inventory losses for scrap or non-saleable matdrigéntory not otherwise identified to be writtdown is compared to an assessment of our
12-month forecasted demand. The result of this austlogy is compared against the product life cyeld competitive situations in the
marketplace to determine the appropriateness akethdting inventory levels. Demand for our produtiay fluctuate significantly over time,
and actual demand and market conditions may be ordess favorable than those that we projecthénevent that actual demand is lower or
market conditions are worse than originally pragectadditional inventory write-downs may be reqgire

Stock compensation P¥ior to fiscal 2006, we accounted for stock-basmuipensation plans under the recognition and measanmnt
provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) @ipin No. 25. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopiedorovisions of SFAS 123R using
the modified-prospective-transition method. SFASR 2equires companies to recognize the fair-vafistark-based compensation
transactions in the statement of income. The falue of our stock-based awards is estimated atdteeof grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The Black-Scholes valuation caldolatrequires us to estimate key assumptions sufilta® stock price volatility, expected
terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expedctiedtk price volatility is based on implied volailfrom traded options on our stock in the
marketplace and historical volatility of our stodKe use historical data to estimate option exescigal employee terminations within the
valuation model. The expected term of options graig derived from an analysis of historical ex@siand remaining contractual life of stock
options, and represents the period of time thaboptgranted are expected to be outstanding. BRefnée rate is based on the U.S. Treasury
yield curve in effect at the time of grant. We haeer paid cash dividends, and do not currentbnic to pay cash dividends, and thus t
assumed a 0% dividend yield. If our actual expeeetiffers significantly from the assumptions usedompute our stock-based compensation
cost, or if different assumptions had been usednag have recorded too much or too little stockebasompensation cost. In addition, we are
required to estimate the expected forfeiture r&tuo stock grants and only recognize the expeasthbse shares expected to vest. If the a
forfeiture rate is materially different from ourtiesate, our stock-based compensation expense beutdaterially different. We had
approximately $114 million of total unrecognizedvgmensation costs related to stock options and RSD&cember 30, 2006 that are expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average perid®years. See Note 8 to the Consolidated FinaBt&ements for a further discussion on
stock-based compensation.

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived asset§Ve review long-lived assets which are held andiyseluding fixed assets and
purchased intangible assets, for impairment whanehanges in circumstances indicate that the gagrgimount of the assets may not be
recoverable. Such evaluations compare the cargmmgunt of an asset to future undiscounted net ftasis expected to be generated by the
asset over its expected useful life and are sicanifily impacted by estimates of future prices amldmes for our products, capital needs,
economic trends and other factors which are inHbréifficult to forecast. If the asset is considdrto be impaired, we record an impairment
charge equal to the amount by which the carryirigevaf the asset exceeds its fair value determiyegither a quoted market price, if any, or a
value determined by utilizing a discounted castwftechnique. Occasionally, we may hold certain tasfee sale. In those cases, the assets are
reclassified on our balance sheet from long-tericutoent, and the carrying value of such assetseaiewed and adjusted each period
thereafter to the fair value less expected cosetio
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We test our goodwill for impairment annually agtod first day of our fourth fiscal quarter and imerim periods if certain events occur
indicating that the carrying value of goodwill mlag impaired. The goodwill impairment test is a tstep process. The first step of the
impairment analysis compares our fair value tormtrbook value. In determining fair value, the astong guidance allows for the use of
several valuation methodologies, although it stgtested market prices are the best evidence of/édire. If the fair value is less than the net
book value, the second step of the analysis commpghesimplied fair value of our goodwill to its cging amount. If the carrying amount of
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, we recagnan impairment loss equal to that excess amount.

Income taxes—We are required to estimate income taxes in eatteqgurisdictions in which we operate. This pree@volves estimating
the actual current tax liability together with assiag temporary differences in recognition of ineofioss) for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences result in deferred tax assetdialnitities, which are included in our consoliddtiealance sheet. We then assess the likelihooc
that the deferred tax assets will be recovered fiidore taxable income and, to the extent we beligat recovery is not likely, we establish a
valuation allowance against the deferred tax afsgther, we operate within multiple taxing jurisibns and are subject to audit in these
jurisdictions. These audits can involve complexiégsswhich may require an extended period of tinres¢olve and could result in additior
assessments of income tax. We believe adequatesjmnos for income taxes have been made for albgsri

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Valwne Measurements”. SFAS 157 defines fair valsgldishes a framework for
measuring fair value in generally accepted accagnirinciples (GAAP) and expands disclosures afmuvalue measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Novemt&r 2007 and interim periods within those fisaadnss. We are currently evaluating the effect
that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on our ficial position and results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB InterpretatieliN) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaXeFIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recogaim an enterprise’s financial statements in ataoce with FASB SFAS 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes”. This Interpretation defines thi@imum recognition threshold a tax position isuiegd to meet before being recognized in
the financial statements. FIN 48 is effective fiecél years beginning after December 15, 2006. Wedopt FIN 48 as of our fiscal year
beginning December 31, 2006, as required. The catimaleffect of adopting FIN 48 will be recordedr@tained earnings and other accounts,
as applicable. We have not determined the effexdtttie adoption of FIN 48 will have on our finagasition and results of operations.

Iltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

Our financial instruments include cash, cash edenta and shorterm investments. Our main investment objectivestlae preservation
investment capital and the maximization of after+eturns on our investment portfolio. Our interesibme is sensitive to changes in the
general level of U.S. interest rates. Based orcash, cash equivalents and short-term investmeftinigs as of December 30, 2006, an
immediate 100 basis point decline in the yielddioch instruments would decrease our annual intereste by approximately $3.9 million.
We believe that our investment policy is consemetboth in the duration of our investments andctteelit quality of the investments we hold.
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In March 2006, we entered into an operating legseeanent for a facility in Austin, Texas for ourporate headquarters. The lease has a
term of seven years. The base rent for the tertheofease is an amount equal to the interest aagan $44.3 million at 110 basis points over
the three-month LIBOR. LIBOR is sensitive to chamgethe general level of U.S. interest rates. hmediate 100 basis point increase in the
three-month LIBOR would increase our annual baselyg approximately $0.4 million.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Financial Statements and supplementary dataregbpy this item are included in Part 1V, Itemdfahis Form 10K and are present
beginning on page F-1.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under the supervisnd with the participation of our managemerduding our Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), thie effectiveness of our disclosure controls amd@dures, as defined in Rule 13a-15
(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 fkehange Act). Based on that evaluation, our mamagé, including our CEO and CFO,
concluded that our disclosure controls and procesiwere effective as of December 30, 2006 to peokedsonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports filedubmitted by us under the Exchange Act is b processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s suéend forms. There was no change in our internatrols during the fiscal quarter ended
December 30, 2006 that materially affected, oe&spnably likely to materially affect, our intericahtrols over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnagidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting. Our internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assu@ooe management and Board of Directors regarttiagoreparation and fair presentation
of published financial statements.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Detx®mn30, 2006. In making this
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by thrar@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread@ammission (COSO) imternal
Control—Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment we believe that, asagfiieer 30, 2006, our internal control over finahcia
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Our independent registered public accounting flEmst & Young LLP, issued an attestation reporbanassessment of our internal
control over financial reporting. This report apfsean page F-1.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None.
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Part 11l

Certain information required by Part Il is omittedm this report because we intend to file a défie Proxy Statement pursuant to
Regulation 14A (the “Proxy Statement”) no latemtiZ0 days after the end of the fiscal year covesethis report, and certain information to
be included therein is incorporated herein by egfee.

Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

Set forth below is information regarding the exaaubfficers and directors of Silicon Laboratoraesof January 31, 2007.

Name Age Position

Navdeep S. Sooc 44  Chairman of the Boar

Necip Sayine 41  Chief Executive Officer, President and Direc
William G. Bock 56  Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid
Gary R. Gay 56  Vice President of Worldwide Sal

Jonathan D. Ivestt 51 Vice President of Worldwide Operatio

Paul V. Walsh, Ji 42  Chief Accounting Officer and Vice President of Fica
David R. Wellanc 51 Vice President and Direct

Harvey B. Casl 68  Director

R. Ted Enloe I 68  Director

Laurence G. Walke 58  Director

William P. Wood 51  Director

Navdeep S. Sooch co-founded Silicon Laboratoriesugust 1996 and has served as Chairman of thedBace our inception.
Mr. Sooch served as our Chief Executive Officenfrour inception through the end of fiscal 2003 aar/ed as interim Chief Executive
Officer from April 2005 to September 2005. From ktad 985 until founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr.d8h held various positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Vice Presitlef Engineering, as well as Product
Planning Manager of Strategic Marketing and De&iggineer. From May 1982 to March 1985, Mr. Soock wd®esign Engineer with AT&T
Bell Labs. Mr. Sooch holds a B.S. in Electrical Exagring from the University of Michigan, Dearb@and a M.S. in Electrical Engineering
from Stanford University.

Necip Sayiner has served as director, PresidenCanef Executive Officer since September 2005. Fdgoining Silicon Laboratories,
Mr. Sayiner held various leadership positions aéregSystems Inc. From August 2004 to September, 0055ayiner served as Vice Presic
and General Manager of Agere’s Enterprise and Nedwg Division and from March 2002 to August 200 $erved as Vice President and
General Manager of Agere’s Networking IC Divisidr. Sayiner holds a B.S. in electrical engineemngl physics from Bosphorus University
in Turkey, a M.S. in Electrical Engineering fromuBloern lllinois University, and a Ph.D. in Elecaid&Engineering from the University of
Pennsylvania.
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William G. Bock has served as Senior Vice Presi@eat Chief Financial Officer since November 2008. Bbck joined Silicon
Laboratories as a director on March 2000, and seageChairman of the audit committee until Noven@96 before he stepped down from
Board of Directors to serve in his current roleorrApril 2002 to November 2006, Mr. Bock was a partof CenterPoint Ventures, a venture
capital firm. From April 2001 to March 2002, Mr. Bloserved as a partner of Verity Ventures, a ventapital firm. From June 1999 to
March 2001, Mr. Bock served as a Vice President@ederal Manager at Hewlett-Packard. Mr. Bock lieédposition of President and Chief
Executive Officer of DAZEL Corporation, a providef electronic information delivery systems, frombReary 1997 until its acquisition by
Hewlett-Packard in June 1999. From October 19%etoruary 1997, Mr. Bock served as Chief Operatiffgc€ of Tivoli Systems, a client
server software company, which was acquired by iBMlarch 1996. Mr. Bock holds a B.S. in ComputeieBce from lowa State University
and a M.S. in Industrial Administration from Carreetylellon University.

Gary R. Gay joined Silicon Laboratories in Octoh887 as Vice President of Worldwide Sales. Prelyoldr. Gay was with Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic from 1985 to Septemtg97lwhere he most recently served as Vice Presafédiorth American Sales. From
1979 to 1985, Mr. Gay was International Sales Managd Asia Pacific Sales Manager with Burr-Browarforation, a designer and
manufacturer of semiconductor components. Mr. Gagidha B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the Restier Institute of Technology.

Jonathan D. Ivester joined Silicon LaboratorieS@ptember 1997 as Vice President and has serwéide®resident of Worldwide
Operations since May 2005. From May 1984 to SepterhB97, Mr. lvester was with Applied Materialssupplier of equipment and services
to the semiconductor industry, and served as QurexftManufacturing and Director of U.S. Procuremia@raddition to various engineering and
manufacturing management positions. Mr. lvester avasientist at Bechtel Corporation, an engineegimg) construction company, from 1980
to 1982 and at Abcor, Inc., an ultrafiltration caang and subsidiary of Koch Industries, from 1978380. Mr. lvester holds a B.S. in
Chemistry from the Massachusetts Institute of Tetdgy and a M.B.A. from Stanford University.

Paul V. Walsh, Jr. joined Silicon Laboratories @amdary 2004 as Director of Finance, Worldwide Opena, and appointed Corporate
Controller in May 2005. Most recently, Mr. Walsimaed as Interim Chief Financial Officer from May@®to November 2006 before promc
to Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer.dPtio joining Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Walsh waiseSController from February 2003 to
January 2004 with PerkinElmer, a supplier to thalthesciences and photonics markets, Manufacti€imgtroller from 2000 to 2003 at
Teradyne, a semiconductor equipment supplier, anidws operational and finance roles from 19920@02at Analog Devices, a
semiconductor manufacturer. Mr. Walsh also sermealtechnical capacity from 1987 to 1990 at R.Ghdéaweil Engineers. Mr. Walsh
received his B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from thiversity of Maine, and a M.B.A from Boston Ueisity.

David R. Welland co-founded Silicon Laboratoriefiungust 1996, has served as a Vice President aadtdi since our inception and was
appointed Fellow in March 2004. From November 106fil founding Silicon Laboratories, Mr. Wellandltiezarious positions at Crystal
Semiconductor/Cirrus Logic, a designer and manufactof integrated circuits, including Senior Destgngineer. Mr. Welland holds a B.S. in
Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts tintiof Technology.
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Harvey B. Cash has served as a director of Siliadyoratories since June 1997. Mr. Cash has sewvgérgeral partner of InterWest
Partners, a venture capital firm, since 1986. MasiCcurrently serves on the Board of Directorsieffollowing public companies: i2
Technologies, a provider of intelligent e-businasd marketplace solutions; Ciena Corporation, &gdes and manufacturer of dense
wavelength division multiplexing systems for fitmptic networks; Argonaut Group Inc., a specialtsuirance company; First Acceptance C
a provider of low-cost auto insurance; and Stakiek, a semiconductor assembly company. Mr. Cadiista B.S. in Electrical Engineering
from Texas A&M University and a M.B.A. from Westekfichigan University.

R. Ted Enloe Ill has served as a director of Silitaboratories since April 2003. Mr. Enloe is catie the Managing General Partner of
Balquita Partners, Ltd., a family investment fifareviously, Mr. Enloe served as President and (Eweftutive Officer of Optisoft, Inc., a
provider of intelligent traffic signal platforms.MMEnloe formerly served as Vice Chairman and merobéhe office of chief executive of
Compaqg Computer Corporation. He also served asderesof Lomas Financial Corporation and Libertedstors for more than 15 years.

Mr. Enloe co-founded a number of other publiclychiéims, including Capstead Mortgage Corp., TylabGt Mortgage Securities Corp., and
Seaman’s Corp. Mr. Enloe currently serves on thar@of Directors of Leggett & Platt, Inc. and LiMation, Inc. Mr. Enloe holds a B.S. in
Engineering from Louisiana Polytechnic Universibdaa J.D. from Southern Methodist University.

Laurence G. Walker has served as a director afd@ilLaboratories since June 2003. Previously, Malkét co-founded and served as
Chief Executive Officer of QRort Corporation, a pioneer in the network processtustry, which was acquired by Motorola in 20B806llowing
the acquisition, Mr. Walker served as Vice PresiddrStrategy for Motorola’s Network and ComputiBgstems Group and then as Vice
President and General Manager of the Network amdptiting Systems Group until 2002. From August 1@9Blay 1997, Mr. Walker served
as Chief Executive Officer of CertCo, a digitaltdfération supplier. Mr. Walker served as Vice Rdemt and General Manager, Network
Products Business Unit, of Digital Equipment Cogtimn, a computer hardware company, from Janua®y 1® July 1996. From 1981 to 19¢
he held a variety of other management positiom3igital Equipment Corporation. Mr. Walker currensigrves as a director of MCDATA
Corporation, an expert provider of mutipable storage networking solutions. Mr. Walkddbé@ B.S. in Electrical Engineering from Prince
University and a M.S. and Ph.D. in Electrical Erggiring from the Massachusetts Institute of Techyolo

William P. Wood has served as a director of Silitaboratories since March 1997 and as Lead Diresitme December 2005. Since
1996, Mr. Wood has also served as general parfnerimus funds associated with Silverton Partnangenture capital firm. From 1984 to
2003, Mr. Wood was a general partner, and for ceftands created since 1996, a special limitedrneairtof various funds associated with
Austin Ventures, a venture capital firm. Mr. Woanlds a B.A. in History from Brown University andwaB.A. from Harvard University.

The remaining information required by this Itenirisorporated by reference to the Proxy Statemedéuthe sections captioneBrbposa
One: Election of Director”, “Executive CompensatioifCompliance with Section 16(a) of the Securitteechange Act of 1934” and “Code of
Ethics.”
ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption “Executive Conmgaion” and “Proposal One: Election of Directorpagring in the Proxy Statement,
is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

The information under the caption “Ownership of &ées” and “Equity Compensation Plan Informaticagpearing in the Proxy
Statement, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information under the caption “Certain Relasioips and Related Transactions, and Director Inu#ggrece” appearing in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information under the caption “Proposal TwotifRation of Appointment of Independent RegisteRublic Accounting Firm”
appearing in the Proxy Statement is incorporatedihdy reference.

Part IV
Iltem 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(@ 1. Financial Statements
Index
Page
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-1
Report of independent registered public accourfiing F-2
Consolidated balance sheets at December 30, 2@DBberember 31, 20C F-3
Consolidated statements of income for the fiscatyended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and
January 1, 200 F-4
Consolidated statements of changes in stockholegrsty for the fiscal years ended December 306200
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2 F-5
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the figears ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005
and January 1, 20( F-6
Notes to consolidated financial stateme F-7

2. Schedules

All schedules have been omitted since the inforomatequired by the schedule is not applicables oot present in amounts sufficient to
require submission of the schedule, or becausitbemation required is included in the consolidbfmancial statements and notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the accompanying index toildiks immediately following the consolidated fir@al statements are filed as part of,
or hereby incorporated by reference into, this Fa¥K.
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(b) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number

2.1

2.2*

3.1*

3.2*

4.1*

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 19, 269%nd among Silicon Laboratories Ir
Sabine Merger Sub, Inc., and Silicon MAGIKE, Infile@ as Exhibit 2.1 to the Form 8-K filed
August 22, 2005)

Share Purchase Agreement, dated May 11, 2006, bpetveen Silicon Laboratories France and
the shareholders of Silembia (filed as Exhibit 110.the Form -K filed May 15, 2006)

Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Certificatmcdrporation of Silicon Laboratories Inc.
(filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s RegistratStatement on Form S-1 (Securities and
Exchange Commission File No. -94853) (the“IPO Registration Stateme”)).

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Silicon Latbdes Inc (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 20!

Specimen certificate for shares of common stod&dfas Exhibit 4.1 to the IPO Registration
Statement)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Silicaabbratories Inc. and each of its directors
and executive officers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 te tRPO Registration Statemer

Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Hfiled as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Securitieseathange Commission File No. 333-60794)
filed on May 11, 2001)

Form of Stock Option Agreement and Notice of Grafnstock Option under Registrant’s 2000
Stock Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended January 1, 200

Form of Addendum to Stock Option Agreement undegifeant’'s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’'s Annua@@®rt on Form 10-K for the year ended
January 1, 2005

Form of Stock Issuance Agreement under Registr@00® Stock Incentive Plan (filed as
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registre's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended January 1, 20(

Form of Addendum to Stock Issuance Agreement uReegistrant’'s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan
(filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Annuad®rt on Form 10-K for the year ended
January 1, 2005

Silicon Laboratories Inc. Employee Stock Purchdae Hiled as Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20t

Lease Agreement dated June 26, 1998 by and be®ikeon Laboratories Inc. and S.W. Austin
Office Building Ltd. (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to tHRO Registration Statemen

Lease Agreement dated October 27, 1999 by and bat®#icon Laboratories Inc. and Stratus
7000 West Joint Venture (filed as Exhibit 10.6He tPO Registration Statemer

Lease Agreement dated June 29, 2000 by and bet8ikeon Laboratories Inc. and Stratus 7000
West Joint Venture. (filed as Exhibit 10.19 to Begistrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended July 1, 200

Employment Agreement dated August 30, 2005 betv@gon Laboratories Inc. and Dr. Necip
Sayiner (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Fori-K filed September 12, 200~
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10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

21
23.1
24
31.1

31.2

32.1

*

Employment Agreement dated November 3, 2006 bet®daon Laboratories Inc. and William
Bock (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Forn-K filed November 8, 2006

Lease, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement datatiM30, 2006 among Silicon Laboratories
Inc., BAL Investment & Advisory, Inc. and Gary Sarfer (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on April 5, 2006)

Participation Agreement dated March 30, 2006 anfitigon Laboratories Inc.,

BAL Investment & Advisory, Inc., Wells Fargo BanloNhwest, National Association and vari
other financial institutions named therein filedeagibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form K filed on April 5, 2006).

Silicon Laboratories Inc. 2007 Bonus Plan (filecexdibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form &K filed on January 30, 2007

Subsidiaries of the Registral
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.
Power of Attorney (included on signature page te Borm 1(-K).

Certification of the Principal Executive Officels eequired by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of the Principal Accounting Officeas required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification as required by Section 906 of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002

Incorporated herein by reference to the indicaiietf
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized, in Austin, Texas, on February@)2

SILICON LABORATORIES INC.

By: /s/ NECIP SAYINER
Necip Sayine
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemshose signature appears below constitutes armirgppNecip Sayiner
and William G. Bock, and each of them, acting indiixally, as his or her attorney-fact, each with full power of substitution and restitution
for him or her and in his or her name, place apddtin any and all capacities, to sign any andrakndments to this annual report on Form 10-
K and other documents in connection herewith aedethith, and to file the same, with all exhibiteréto, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact agents, and each of them, full power and authtwitlo and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done inezdion herewith and therewith and about the presnias fully to all intents and purposes as
he or she might or could do in person, herebyyiatif and confirming all that said attorneys-in-faad agents, or any of them, or their or his
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or catesbe done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated:

Name Title. Date
/s/ NAVDEEP S. SOOCH Chairman of the Board February 6, 2007
Navdeep S. Sooc
/s/ NECIP SAYINER President, Chief Executive Officer and February 6, 2007
Necip Sayine Director (Principal Executive Office
/s/ WILLIAM G. BOCK Senior Vice President and Chief Financial February 6, 2007
William G. Bock Officer (Principal Financial Officer
/s/ PAUL V. WALSH, JR Vice President (Principal Accounting Officer) February 6, 2007

Paul V. Walsh, Jt

Vice President and Direct:

David R. Wellanc

/sl HARVEY B. CASH Director February 6, 2007
Harvey B. Casl
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/sl ROBERT TED ENLOE, Il

Robert Ted Enloe, Il

/sl LAURENCE G. WALKER

Laurence G. Walke

/s/ WILLIAM P. WOOD

William P. Wood

Director

Director

Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicor.aboratories Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodbd accompanying Management’'s Report on IntéZoakrol over Financial
Reporting, that Silicon Laboratories Inc. maintaimdfective internal control over financial repadias of December 30, 2006, based on cri
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiratiaf the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). Silicon Laboratories Inc.’s manageitris responsible for maintaining effective intdroontrol over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internakrabaver financial reporting. Our responsibilitytio express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectivenesg afdmpany’s internal control over financial repartbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet smidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahchéng the design and operating effectivenessatefnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary @irtlenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablessssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or démisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that 8Siliaoratories Inc. maintained effective interrmahirol over financial reporting as of
December 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all mateeapects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, mopinion, Silicon Laboratories Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveinal control over financial reporting as of DecemB0, 2006, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Laboratdniesas of December 30, 2006 and December 31,,20Qbthe related consolidated
statements of income, changes in stockholderstgcumnd cash flows of Silicon Laboratories Inc. éaich of the three fiscal years in the period
ended December 30, 2006 and our report dated FgtBud007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Austin, Texas
February 6, 200




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Silicor.aboratories Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Silicon Laboratories Inc. as of Dea3B, 2006 and December 31,
2005, and the related consolidated statementscofiie, changes in stockholders’ equity, and castsflior each of the three fiscal years in the
period ended December 30, 2006. These financitdmtnts are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statemersiscban our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighamio(United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referalove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
Silicon Laboratories Inc. at December 30, 2006 Radember 31, 2005, and the consolidated results operations and its cash flows for e
of the three fiscal years in the period ended Ddar80, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally egted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
effectiveness of Silicon Laboratories Inc.’s introontrol over financial reporting as of DecemB@y 2006, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission and our report
dated February 6, 2007 expressed an unqualifiedarpthereon.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrst&tements, effective January 1, 2006, the Comphanged its method of accounting
for stock-based compensation to conform to Stat¢éwfeRinancial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), d8kBased Payment”.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLFP

Austin, Texas
February 6, 200
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share data)

December 30 December 31

2006 2005
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 68,18¢ $100,50¢
Shor-term investment 318,10« 263,20¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $548 at
December 30, 2006 and $1,088 at December 31, 49,701 56,88t
Inventories 40,28z 23,132
Deferred income taxe 13,33( 11,50t
Prepaid expenses and otl 14,10z 9,67C
Total current assets 503,70i 464,90(
Property, equipment and software, 43,321 32,58¢
Goodwill 78,22¢ 62,871
Other intangible assets, r 21,97C 14,83¢
Other assets, n 39,77: 25,863
Total assets $686,99¢ $601,06:
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 36,39¢ $ 43,84¢€
Accrued expense 27,92¢ 16,12¢
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 22,23¢ 17,27¢
Income taxe:! 15,068 18,34¢
Total current liabilities 101,627 95,59¢
Long-term obligations and other liabiliti¢ 16,691 7,41€
Total liabilities 118,31: 103,01¢
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock—$0.0001 par value; 10,000 sharé®ared; no shares issued
and outstandin — —
Common stock—$0.0001 par value; 250,000 share®anétl; 54,802 and
54,530 shares issued and outstanding at Decembh2036 and
December 31, 2005, respectivi 5 5
Additional paic-in capital 373,65t 335,28¢
Deferred stock compensati (1,10%)
Retained earning 195,027 163,86¢
Total stockholders’ equity 568,68: 498,04¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $686,99¢ $601,06:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
January 1,
2006 2005 2005

Revenues $464,597 $425,68¢  $456,22¢
Cost of revenue 208,217 193,90« 206,32(
Gross profit 256,38( 231,78¢ 249,90¢
Operating expense

Research and developm 121,70i 101,22z 78,05¢€

Selling, general and administrati 102,35¢ 72,55¢ 65,164

In-process research and developn 3,20C — —
Operating expenses 227,26 173,77 143,22(
Operating incomi 29,11¢ 58,01(C 106,68¢
Other income (expense

Interest incom 13,74% 8,28t 3,054

Interest expens (872 (322 (311)

Other income (expense), net 744 (332 2,14¢
Income before income tax 42,73: 65,641 111,57¢
Provision for income taxes 11,574 18,13¢ 34,88:
Net income $ 31,15¢ $ 47,50€ $ 76,69
Net income per shar

Basic $ 056 $ 089 $ 149

Diluted $ 0.5 $ 08 $ 1.3¢
Weighte-average common shares outstand

Basic 55,34¢ 53,39¢ 51,471

Diluted 57,201 55,48t 54,98:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderEquity
(in thousands)

Common Stock

Number Additional Deferred Stoc-llzr)\toallders’
of Par Paid-In Stock Retained
Shares Value Capital Compensation Earnings Equity
Balance as of January 3, 2004 51,237 $ 5 $256,79. $(9,257) $ 39,66t $287,20t
Exercises of stock optior 798 — 10,26¢ — — 10,26¢
Income tax benefit from employee
stoclk-based award — — 6,76€ — — 6,76€
Repurchase and cancellation
unvested share (5) — — — — —
Employee Stock Purchase P 109 — 2,74€ — — 2,74€
Deferred stock compensati — — (233) 233 — —
Stock compensatic — — — 4,237 — 4,237
Purchase acquisitic 369 — 11,56¢ — — 11,56¢
Net income = = — — 76,69: 76,69:
Balance as of January 1, 2005 52,50¢ 5 287,90¢ (4,787) 116,35¢ 399,48¢
Exercises of stock optior 1,20¢ — 17,33¢ — — 17,33¢
Income tax benefit from employee
stoclk-based award — — 4,61F — — 4,61F
Repurchase and cancellation
unvested share (31) — (12) — — (12)
Employee Stock Purchase P 133 — 2,862 — — 2,862
Deferred stock compensati — — (697) 697 — —
Stock compensatic — — 4,28¢ 2,98t — 7,274
Purchase acquisitic 712 — 18,98( — — 18,98(
Net income i — — — 47,50¢ 47,50¢
Balance as of December 31, 2005 54,53( 5 335,28¢ (2,105) 163,86¢ 498,04¢
Stock issuances under emplo
plans, net of shares withheld
for taxes 1,677 — 33,50¢ — — 33,50¢
Income tax benefit from employ:
stock-based award — — 13,044 — — 13,044
Repurchases of common stc (1,554) — (50,04¢) — — (50,04¢)
Employee Stock Purchase P 149 — 3,357 — — 3,357
Reclass due to the adoption of SFAS
123R — — (1,105 1,10¢ — —
Stock compensatia — — 39,617 — — 39,617
Net income i — — — 31,15¢ 31,15¢
Balance as of December 30, 2006 54,802 $ 5 $37365¢ $§ —  $19502: $568,68:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

F-5




Silicon Laboratories Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Operating Activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash praviole operatin@ctivities:

Depreciation and amortization of property, equiphaerd softwar¢

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, equipment softlvare
Amortization of other intangible assets and otlssete
Stock compensation exper

Acquired and i-process research and developm

Additional income tax benefit from employee st-based award

Excess income tax benefit from employee s-based award

Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Deferred income on shipments to distribut
Deferred income taxe
Income taxes payable
Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing Activities

Purchases of shi-term investment

Sales and maturities of sh-term investment

Purchases of property, equipment and soft

Proceeds from the sale of property, equipment aftd/are
Purchases of other ass

Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acqt

Net cash used in investing activiti

Financing Activities

Proceeds from Employee Stock Purchase

Proceeds from exercises of stock opti

Excess income tax benefit from employee s-based award
Repurchases of common stc

Payments on debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paic

Income taxes pai

Supplemental Disclosure of No-Cash Activity:
Accrued other asse

Stock issued for acquisition of busint

Year Ended
December 30 December 31

January 1,

2006 2005 2005
$ 31,15¢ $ 47,50¢ $ 76,69:
16,245 17,712 16,191
712 124 (2,174)
4,989 2,818 3,315
39,40C 7,274 4,237
3,200 13,687 —
13,044 4,615 6,766
(7,402) — —
7,182 (13,891 4,887
(16,939) 15,27¢ (4,341)
(7,768) (13,119 (1,602)
(5,098) 15,82¢ (10,68¢)
9,951 (4,195) 9,073
4,961 3,737 2,010
(7,021) (3,521) (3,645)
(3,335) 10,141 (4,456)
83,28¢ 103,99( 96,265
(404,664) (385,5572) (638,337)
349,76¢€ 350,81¢ 541,74¢
(29,772) (20,377) (20,50€)
2,032 266 4,464
(6,477) (17,45¢) (6,328)
(21,227) (6) (114)
(110,33¢) (72,31)) (119,077%)
3,357 2,862 2,746
34,80C 17,327 10,26€&
7,402 — —
(50,04¢€) — —
(774) — —
(5,261) 20,18¢ 13,014
(32,31¢) 51,86¢& (9,798)
100,504 48,63€ 58,434
$ 68,18¢ $ 100,50 $ 48,63¢
$ 631 $ 344 $ 254
$ 8,51¢ $ 6,622 $ 36,35(C
$ = $ 8,12¢ $ 2,902
$ — $ 18,98( $ 11,56¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 30, 2006

1. Description of Business

Silicon Laboratories Inc. (the Company), a Delawarporation, develops and markets mixed-signdlogniatensive integrated circuits
(ICs) for a broad range of applications for gloverkets. Within the semiconductor industry, the @any is known as a “fabless” company
meaning that the ICs are manufactured by thirdydadndry semiconductor companies.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolioia

The Company prepares financial statements on &852egk year that ends on the Saturday closest¢erDiger 31. Fiscal years 2006,
2005 and 2004 were 52-week years and ended Dec&@p2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2868pectively. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements include the actsoof the Company and its wholly owned subsidgrfd| significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated.

Foreign Currency Transactior
The functional currency of the Company’s foreigbsidiaries is the U.S. dollar; accordingly, allrgmand losses resulting from
remeasuring transactions denominated in curreinties than U.S. dollars are included in net income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféatttae amounts reported in the financial statet:iand accompanying notes. Among
the significant estimates affecting the financtatsments are those related to accounts receivialintories, stock compensation, goodwill,
long-lived assets and income taxes. Actual resoltgd differ from those estimates, and such difiees could be material to the financial
statements.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 30, 2006

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Reclassification:

A portion of the Company’s sales are made to distdrs under agreements allowing for price protectiThe Company defers revenue
and the related costs on such sales until thellistrs sell the product to the end customer. Tomgany has reclassified estimated credits for
price protection in prior periods to conform to therent year presentation. Accordingly, the Conydaes revised the classification to exclude
$16.8 million from deferred income on shipmentsliiributors at December 31, 2005 and to includd ®stimated credits of $11.9 million in
accounts receivable and $4.8 million in accruedeegps. In addition, the Company has reclassifigohated credits for price protection in its
consolidated statement of cash flows for the figears ended December 31, 2005 and January 1, 205 affected cash flows as follows
thousands):

December 31 January 1,

2005 2005
Accounts receivabl $ 8,661 $ 3,28C
Accrued expense (3,590 8,412
Deferred income on shipments to distribut $(5,071) $(11,692)

The reclassifications had no impact on the Compargsults of operations or its overall cash flowsrf operating activities in its
consolidated statements of cash flows.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The Company'’s financial instruments consist prialipof cash and cash equivalents, short-term itnvests, accounts receivable and
accounts payable. The Company believes all of tfieaacial instruments are recorded at amountsahptoximate their current market values.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash deposlt;westments with maturities of ninety daysesisiwhen purchased.

Short-Term Investments

The Company’s short-term investments have origimatiurities greater than ninety days as of the dfpeirchase and have been classified
as available-for-sale securities in accordance ittancial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statenof Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investmemt®ebt and Equity Securities”. The Company hasahility and intent, if necessary, to
liguidate any of its investments in order to méstiquidity needs in the next 12 months. Accordimgvestments with contractual maturities
greater than one year from the date of purchaselassified as shoterm investments on the consolidated balance shE®gscarrying value «
all available-for-sale securities approximatesrtfai value due to their short-term nature. TherPany reviews these investments as of the
end of each reporting period for other-than-tempodgclines in fair value based on the specifiatdieation method. When the Company
concludes that an other-than-temporary impairmastresulted, the difference between the fair vahethe carrying value is written off and
recorded as an impairment charge in the consotidgtegement of income.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 30, 2006

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, Equipment and Softwe

Property, equipment, and software are stated &t wesof accumulated depreciation and amortizafepreciation and amortization are
computed using the straight-line method over thefuldives of the assets ranging from three to frears. Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the contractual lease periodair tiseful life, whichever is shorter.

LongLived Assets

Purchased intangible assets are stated at costf aetumulated amortization, and are amortizedguie straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, ranging from one to ninarge

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets inrderwe with FASB SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for thgpairment of Long-lived
Assets”. Long-lived assets “held and used” by tbenfGany are reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate
that their net book value may not be recoverableel\such factors and circumstances exist, the Coyngampares the projected undiscour
future cash flows associated with the related assgtoup of assets over their estimated usefakliagainst their respective carrying amounts.
Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of #reying amount over the fair value of those asantkis recorded in the period in which the
determination was made. Long-lived assets helddtr by the Company are adjusted to fair valuedessto sell in the period the “held for
sale” criteria are met and reclassified to a curasset. The fair value less cost to sell amouev@uated each period to determine if it has
changed. Changes are recognized as gains or lostesperiod in which they occur.

Carrying values of goodwill and other intangiblsets with indefinite lives are reviewed at leasiuaily by the Company for possible
impairment in accordance with FASB SFAS No. 14206@will and Other Intangible Assets,” (SFAS 142)eTgoodwill impairment test is a
two-step process. The first step of the impairnaaralysis compares the fair value of the compamgorting unit to the net book value of the
company or reporting unit. In determining fair v@|lIBFAS 142 allows for the use of several valuati@thodologies, although it states quoted
market prices are the best evidence of fair vetiep two of the analysis compares the impliedvaiue of goodwill to its carrying amount. If
the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implfail value, an impairment loss is recognized edqoi@hat excess. The Company tests
goodwill for impairment annually as of the firstydaf its fourth fiscal quarter and in interim pai®if events occur that would indicate that the
carrying value of goodwill may be impaired.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenues are generated almost exclusively by eéitbe Company’s ICs. The Company recognizes rezavhen all of the following
criteria are met: 1) there is persuasive evidehaean arrangement exists, 2) delivery of goodsokasrred, 3) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and 4) collectibility is reasonabdg@red. Revenue from product sales direct to ciesmand contract manufacturers is generally
recognized upon shipment. Certain of the Compasaias are made to distributors under agreemewotsialj certain rights of return and price
protection on products unsold by distributors. Adaagly, the Company defers revenue and grosstprofsuch sales until the distributors sell
the product to the end customer.
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Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 30, 2006

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Shipping and Handling
Shipping and handling costs are classified as gooment of cost of revenues in the consolidate@stants of income.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has two stock-based compensation @000 Stock Incentive Plan and the EmployeekSRurchase Plan. Prior to
fiscal 2006, the Company accounted for those plawger the recognition and measurement provisiosP®& Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees”, and related Intergoetaf as permitted by FASB SFAS No. 123, “Accountior Stock-Based
Compensation,” (SFAS 123). Compensation costsaelet stock options granted at fair value undes¢hgans were not recognized in the
consolidated statements of income. Compensatiais celsted to restricted stock, restricted stodksuiRSUs) and stock options granted below
fair value were recognized in the consolidatedestants of income. In December 2004, FASB issuedSSEZ3 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment”, (SFAS 123R). Under the new standard, emes are no longer able to account for share-basmmgensation transactions using the
intrinsic value method in accordance with APB OpimNo. 25. Instead, companies are required to atdousuch transactions using a fair-
value method and recognize the expense in thegmstnt of income.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SEZER using the modified-prospective-transitionmet Under this transition
method, stock compensation cost recognized beginfanuary 1, 2006 includes: (a) compensation costlf share-based payments granted
prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 20@6ed on the grant date fair value estimateddordence with the original provisions of SF.
123, and (b) compensation cost for all share-bpsgdhents granted on or subsequent to January &, B@8ed on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions of SER3R. Results for prior periods have not beeratedt See Note 8, “Stockholders’ Equity
and Stock-Based Compensation” for further inforovati

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adsingiexpenses were $1.7 million, $1.5 million adds$illion in fiscal 2006, 2005, and
2004, respectively.

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeFASB SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income B’ (SFAS 109). This
statement requires the use of the asset and tiabikthod whereby deferred tax asset and liakalityount balances are determined based on
differences between financial reporting and thebtases of assets and liabilities and are measusird the enacted tax rates and laws that will
be in effect when the differences are expectedverse. These differences result in deferred tsgtasnd liabilities, which are included in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet. The Compeamyassesses the likelihood that the deferredssetawill be recovered from future
taxable income. A valuation allowance is establishgainst deferred tax assets to the extent thep@oyrbelieves that recovery is not likely
based on the level of historical taxable income @mjections for future taxable income over thequis in which the temporary differences are
deductible.




Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 30, 2006

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income andnretlized gains (losses) on availabledale investments. There were no signifi
differences between net income and comprehensogaria during any of the periods presented

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Valwne Measurements”. SFAS 157 defines fair valsgldishes a framework for
measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclasat®out fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is aféefir fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 and interim periods within thfiseal years. The Company is currently evaluatheyeffect that the adoption of SFAS 1
will have on its financial position and resultsogferations.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB InterpretatieiiN) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaXeFIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recogaim an enterprise’s financial statements in ataoce with SFAS 109. This Interpretation
defines the minimum recognition threshold a taxtpwsis required to meet before being recognizethe financial statements. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decembgr2006. The Company will adopt FIN 48 as ofigsal year beginning December 31, 2C
as required. The cumulative effect of adopting BB\will be recorded in retained earnings and o#feeounts, as applicable. The Company has
not determined the effect that the adoption of B8\Wwill have on its financial position and reswdfsoperations.

3. Earnings Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation aéiz and diluted net income per share (in thousaa®pt per share data):

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
January 1,
2006 2005 2005
Net income $31,15¢ $47,50¢ $76,69:
Basic:
Weightec-average shares of commstock outstandin 55,34¢€ 53,527 51,811
Weighted-average shares of common stock subjeeptarchase — (128) (340)
Shares used in computing basic net income per share 55,34¢€ 53,399 51,471
Effect of dilutive securities
Weightec-average shares of commstock subject to repurcha — 98 274
Contingent shares, acquisiti — 267 139
Stock options and awart 1,855 1,721 3,099
Shares used in computing diluted net income peesha 57,201 55,485 54,983
Basic net income per share $ 0.56 $ 0.89 $ 1.49
Diluted net income per sha $ 054 $ 0.86 $ 1.39




Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 30, 2006

3. Earnings Per Share (Continued)

Approximately 3.9 million, 3.7 million and 1.6 nidh weighted-average dilutive potential sharesashmon stock have been excluded
from the diluted net income per share calculatmrtlie fiscal years ended December 30, 2006, DeeeB1y 2005 and January 1, 2005,
respectively, as they are anti-dilutive. The Comypiasued 1.8 million shares of common stock andirepased 1.6 million shares during the
fiscal year ended December 30, 2006.

4. Balance Sheet Details
Short-term Investments

Short-term investments consist of the following tdedrurities (in thousands):

Carrying Value
December 30 December 31

2006 2005
Municipal $318,10¢ $262,20¢
U.S. Government Agency — 997

$318,10¢ $263,20¢

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, daterthusing the first-in, first-out method, or markeaventories consist of the following (in
thousands):

December 30 December 31

2006 2005
Work in progres: $30,86: $15,40¢
Finished goods 9,419 7,723

$40,28: $23,132

Property, Equipment and Softwe

Property, equipment and software consist of thiefohg (in thousands):

December 30 December 31

2006 2005
Equipment $ 47,09( $ 32,88(
Computers and purchased softw 39,19¢ 31,611
Furniture and fixture 3,077 1,941
Leasehold improvemen 10,322 5,872
99,68¢ 72,304
Accumulated depreciation (56,367) (39,720

$ 43,321 $ 32,584
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4. Balance Sheet Details (Continued)
Accrued Expense
Accrued expenses consist of the following (in tlends):

December 30 December 31

2006 2005
Accrued compensation and bene $12,12¢ $ 7,702
Accrued price protection credi 9,997 4,822
Other 5,804 3,605

$27,92¢ $16,12¢

5. Risks and Uncertainties
Financial Instrument:

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to significant concentrations of credik gensist primarily of cash, cash
equivalents, short-term investments and accountsvable. The Company places its cash, cash egumitsahnd short-term investments
primarily in market rate accounts. Concentratioheredit risk with respect to accounts receivalske @imarily due to customers with large
outstanding balances. At December 30, 2006, thr&edCompany’s customers, Edom Technology, SamaadgVotorola, represented 41%,
13% and 10% of the Company’s accounts receivabspactively. At December 31, 2005, one of the Campigecustomers, Edom Technology,
represented 39% of the Company’s accounts receivdbe Company performs periodic credit evaluatimfriss customers’ financial condition
and generally requires no collateral from its costos. The Company provides an allowance for doubtfaounts based upon the expected
collectibility of such receivables. The followingltle summarizes the changes in the allowance fabtfld accounts (in thousands):

Balance at January 3, 20 $1,07¢
Additions charged to bad debt provisi 38
Write-off of uncollectible account (29)
Balance at January 1, 2005 1,08¢
Additions charged to bad debt provisi 225
Write-off of uncollectible accounts (225)
Balance at December 31, 2005 1,08¢
Reductions credited to bad debt provis (511)
Write-off of uncollectible accounts (29)
Balance at December 30, 2006 $ 548

Suppliers

A significant portion of the Company’s products &abricated by Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturirgg @'SMC). The inability of
TSMC to deliver wafers to the Company on a timedgib could impact the production of the Companyipcts for a substantial period of
time, which could have a material adverse effedhenCompany’s business, financial condition arsdiits of operations.
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5. Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Customers

The Company sells directly to end customers, thistars and contract manufacturers. Although the @y actually sells the products
and is paid by, distributors and contract manufaety the Company refers to the end customer asistomer. The Company’s end customers
and distributors that accounted for greater thé d®revenue consists of the following:

Year Ended
December 30 December 31 January 1,
2006 2005 2005

End Customer
Samsun 11% 14% 17%
Distributors
Edom 38% 29% 20%
Uniquest ** 11% 12%

**  Less than 10% of revenue.

Products

A significant portion of the Company’s revenue @centrated in the mobile handset market, whichessmted 44%, 44% and 50% of the
Company’s total revenues in fiscal 2006, 2005 ab@42 respectively.
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6. Acquisitions

Silembia

On May 11, 2006, the Company completed its acqoisitf Silembia, a privately held company baseBémnes, France. Silembia
develops semiconductor intellectual property fajitdi demodulation and channel decoding. The Compaquired all of the outstanding
capital stock of Silembia in exchange for approxieha$20.5 million, which includes direct acquisiti costs. Of such consideration, $2.8
million was withheld as security for breaches gfresentations and warranties and certain otheesgfyrenumerated matters. The acquisition
was accounted for as a purchase business combiinataccordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Comtfidns” (SFAS 141), and
accordingly, the results of Silembia’s operatioresiacluded in the Company’s consolidated resultsperations from the date of the
acquisition. Through the acquisition, the Compacyuired engineering expertise and reduced the tégeired to develop new technologies
and products. These factors contributed to a pgechace that was in excess of the fair value efrtét assets acquired and, as a result, the
Company recorded goodwill. None of the goodwilllesiuctible for tax purposes. The purchase priceallasated as follows (in thousands):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible asset:
Core & developed technolog $ 9,40C 7.9
Employmen-related 100 1.9
In-process research and development 2,600
12,10C
Fair value of net tangible ass: (1,463)
Goodwill 9,883
Total purchase pric $20,52(

The in-process research and development (IPR&D)loadchieved technological feasibility and hadatternative future use; therefore,
the costs were expensed in the consolidated statesh@ncome on the date of acquisition. The IPR&dnsisted of three projects, including
two terrestrial broadcast technologies and a #&télfoadcast technology. The fair value assigondtie¢ projects was as follows (in thousands):

Project
Terrestrial broadcastir

Satellite broadcast
Total

Fair Value
$1,30C
1,30C
$2,60C

The fair value was determined using a discountstt law analysis. The discount rate applicablentodash flows was 32%. This rate
reflects the weighted-average cost of capital &edisks inherent in the development process. Btexlecosts to complete the projects have
been consistent with our assumptions at the tintheacquisition. The Company dodasexpect the products derived from these techne®oty

begin to contribute to revenues prior to late fiG07.
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6. Acquisitions (Continued)
StackCom

On July 19, 2006, the Company completed its acimuisof StackCom, a privately held company deveigpwvireless protocol software
stacks for GSM and GPRS mobile applications. Them@any acquired all of the outstanding capital stwic&tackCom for initial consideration
of approximately $6.7 million, which includes ditexquisition costs. Of such consideration, $1.lioniwas withheld as security for breaches
of representations and warranties and certain @kgressly enumerated matters. The Company isoblggated to pay between $0 and $2.0
million to the shareholders of StackCom based eratthievement of certain business performance esattiring the eighteen-month period
ending in January 2008. The acquisition was ace&ulfdr as a purchase business combination in aanoedwith SFAS 141 and ,accordingly,
the results of StackCom’s operations are includettié Company’s consolidated results of operatfmns the date of the acquisition. Through
the acquisition, the Company acquired softwaressrstems expertise enabling the integration of cete@oftware solutions with future
generations of the Company’s AeroFONE single-cliipre. These factors contributed to a purchase fratevas in excess of the fair value of
the net assets acquired and, as a result, the Ggmeeorded goodwill. None of the goodwill is detlble for tax purposes. The purchase price
was allocated as follows: goodwill—$5.5 milliontamgible assets—$1.9 million; IPR&D—3$0.6 milliomdinet tangible assets—$(1.3)
million.

Silicon MAGIKE, Inc.

On August 19, 2005, the Company completed its adipi of Silicon MAGIKE, Inc. (Silicon MAGIKE), anixed-signal development-
stage enterprise that develops high-voltage, higifiepmance, mixed-signal ICs. The Company acquatedf the outstanding capital stock of
Silicon MAGIKE for initial consideration of $15.9ittion. Of such initial consideration, the Compawithheld $1.0 million to be paid in
quarterly installments over two years based upersttisfaction of certain continued employmentgailons and the Company withheld $1.6
million for approximately two years as security fmtential indemnification obligations. The Compaslso obligated to pay between $0 and
$24.0 million to the shareholders of Silicon MAGIKEsed on the achievement of certain businessrpeafece metrics during the eighteen-
month period ending on June 30, 2007. The perfocmametrics are tied to revenue milestones, grosgintgand customer diversity
requirements.
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6. Acquisitions (Continued)

Through the acquisition, the Company acquired esgging expertise and significant development pregon high-voltage products. In
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EI3$)d No. 98-3, “Determining Whether a Nonmonetaan3action Involves Receipt of
Productive Assets or of a Business,” this transactias accounted for as a purchase of assets.urbegse price was allocated as follows (in
thousands):

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Amount (Years)
Intangible assets:
Employment contrac $ 1,00 2.0
Employees with skills, knowledge, and relationst 635 5.0
Assembled workforce 508 5.0
2,143
Acquired research and developm 13,687
Net fair value of tangible assets acquired andliies assume: 48
Total purchase price $15,87¢

7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
The gross carrying amount and accumulated amdadizaf goodwill and other intangible assets aréodews (in thousands):

Weighted- December 30 December 31
Average 2006 2005
Accumulated Accumulated
Amortization Gross Gross
Period (Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Unamortized intangible assets:
Goodwill Not amortize« $78,22¢ $ — $62,877 $ —
Amortized intangible assets:
Core & developed technolog 8.2 $20,45(C $(4,105) $ 9,25C $(2,112)
Customer relationshif 6.0 2,100 (1,069 2,100 (719)
Internal use softwar 6.1 1,000 (525) 1,300 (488)
Patents 6.9 4,763 (2,022 5,193 (2,708)
Employment-related 3.5 2,593 (1,217) 2,448 (426)
Total 7.4 $30,90¢ $(8,93¢) $20,291 $(5,459)

The increases in goodwill and amortized intangéssets are primarily due to the Silembia and Stankacquisitions. Amortization
expense related to intangible assets for fisca620005, and 2004 was $4.3 million, $2.7 milliond&2.2 million, respectively. The estimated
aggregate amortization expense for intangible ageeeach of the five succeeding fiscal yearsifodows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2007 $4,49¢
2008 $3,991
2009 $3,87:
2010 $3,272
2011 $2,62:
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8. Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compensan
Common Stock

The Company had 54.8 million shares of common statktanding as of December 30, 2006. Of theseesh#8,000 shares were
unvested and subject to rights of repurchase #psel according to a time based vesting schedule.

As of December 30, 2006, the Company had resetvaes of common stock for future issuance as falwthousands):

2000 Stock Incentive Ple 14,89¢
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 1,227
Total shares reservt 16,12¢

Share Repurchase Program

In July 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors autted a program to repurchase up to $100 millibthe Company’s common stock
from time to time over a twelve-month period. Thiegram allows for repurchases to be made in the operket subject to applicable legal
requirements and other factors. As of DecembeRB06, the Company had repurchased 1.6 million shafréés common stock under this plan
for $50.0 million at an average purchase price3#.$7 per share.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has two stock-based compensation 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and the EmployeekS®urchase Plan, which are
described below. Prior to fiscal 2006, the Compacgounted for those plans under the recognitiomnagasurement provisions of APB
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Hoyges,” and related interpretations, as permitte&FAS 123. Effective January 1, 2006,
the Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modifiedgactive-transition method. Results for prior pési have not been restated.

The Company’s income before income taxes for fi268I6 was lower by $25 million and net income wagdr by $21 million, than if the
Company had continued to account for share-basegpensation under APB Opinion No. 25. For the saar®g, basic earnings per share was
$0.37 lower and diluted earnings per share wass$iow8er, due to the Company adopting SFAS 123R.

Prior to adopting SFAS 123R, the Company presealtadx benefits of deductions resulting from tixereise of stock grants as operating
cash flows in the consolidated statements of dasvsf SFAS 123R requires the cash flows resultingifthe tax benefits from tax deductions
in excess of the compensation cost recognized g$sxes benefits) to be classified as financing ¢msts. As a result, $7.4 million of excess
tax benefits for fiscal 2006 have been classifiedirrancing cash flows.

The shares issuable under the 2000 Stock InceRtareand Employee Stock Purchase Plan automaticaligase on the first stock mar
trading day of each calendar year. On January & 8 amount of shares reserved for the 2000 $tmentive Plan and the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan increased by 2.7 million and 250 e3®ectively.
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8. Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compengan (Continued)
2000 Stock Incentive Plan

In fiscal 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors atockholders approved the 2000 Stock Incentiae Rhe 2000 Plan). The 2000 Plan
contains programs for (i) the discretionary gramtirfi stock options to employees, non-employee boethbers and consultants for the
purchase of shares of the Company’s common stopth€ discretionary issuance of common stockdatiye(as granted under direct issuance
shares and RSUSs), (iii) the granting of speciabWetnarket stock options to executive officers atiteo highly compensated employees of the
Company for which the exercise price can be paiidgusayroll deductions and (iv) the automatic issteaof stock options to non-employee
board members. The discretionary issuance of constamk, RSUs and stock options generally contasting provisions ranging from three
eight years. If permitted by the Company, stockas can be exercised immediately and, similah&odirect issuance shares, are subject to
repurchase rights which generally lapse in accaréavith the vesting schedule. The repurchase rigtagide that upon certain defined events,
the Company can repurchase unvested shares aid¢bheppid per share. The term of each stock opsiaso more than ten years from the dat
grant.

The Company granted 0.3 million, 1.6 million an@ fnillion stock options, and 1.0 million, 1.2 milhi and zero RSUs from the 2000
Plan during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respegtiveh additional $2.5 million was recorded in sedlj general and administrative expense
during fiscal 2005 in connection with certain mazhtions of non-employee stock compensation. The @y accelerated the vesting of
certain options and stock awards and extendedxiireise period of the options pursuant to a sejmsraigreement between the Company and
its former CEO in fiscal 2005. There were no ottignificant modifications made to any stock grahising these periods.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the Purchasgwésnadopted by the Company’s Board of Directorfisical 2000. Eligible
employees may purchase a limited number of shdrd®dCompany’s common stock at 85% of the markdter during a series of offering
periods. Each offering period is divided into seaniual purchase intervals and has a maximum te2d afonths. During fiscal 2006, 2005
and 2004, the Company issued 149,000, 133,000 @@00 shares under the Purchase Plan. The weightdge fair value for purchase
rights granted under the Purchase Plan for fisg@b2vas $13.14 per share.

Accounting for Stock Compensation

Stock-based compensation costs are generally loestiee fair value calculated from the Black-Schapson{pricing model on the date
grant for stock options and on the date of enrafinfer the Purchase Plan. RSU fair values geneegjlyal their intrinsic value on the date of
grant.

The fair values of stock grants are amortized aspsmsation expense on a straight-line basis oeevehting period of the grants.
Compensation expense recoghized is shown in theatipg activities section of the consolidated stegats of cash flow.
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8. Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compengan (Continued)

In anticipation of adopting SFAS 123R, the Compawngluated the assumptions used in the Black-Schodelel. As a result, the
Company changed its methodology for computing etgaeeolatility and expected term. Calculation opegted volatility was changed from
being based solely on historical volatility to ardmnation of both historical volatility and impliesblatility derived from traded options on the
Company'’s stock in the marketplace. The Companigbes that the combination of historical volatiléyd implied volatility provides a better
estimate of future stock price volatility. The egpe term was previously calculated based on alysisaf historical exercises of stock
options. The Company believes that an analysissbbttical exercises and remaining contractualdffeptions provides a better estimate of
future exercise pattern.

The Company continues to base the estimate offregkrate on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in éfggcthe time of grant. The Company
has never paid cash dividends and does not cyriatéind to pay cash dividends, thus has assun®éd dividend yield.

As part of the requirements of SFAS 123R, the Comipsarequired to estimate potential forfeiturestafck grants and adjust
compensation cost recorded accordingly. The estimiforfeitures will be adjusted over the req@siervice period to the extent that actual
forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, freamch estimates. Changes in estimated forfeituiébarecognized through a cumulative catch-
up adjustment in the period of change and will atgpact the amount of stock compensation expenbe tecognized in future periods. There
has been no change in estimated forfeitures ialfiag06.

The weighted-average fair value of share-based patgwas estimated using the Black-Scholes optiming model with the following
assumptions:

Year Ended
December 30 December 31 January 1,
2006 2005 2005
2000 Stock Incentive Pla
Expected volatility 59% 53% 60%
Risk-free interest rate ¢ 4.6% 3.9% 3.5%
Expected term (in year 5.3 4.8 5.7
Dividend yield — — —
Employee Stock Purchase Pl:
Expected volatility 50% 55% 73%
Risk-free interest rate ¢ 5.0% 3.5% 1.4%
Expected term (in month 8 15 17
Dividend yield — — —
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Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compengan (Continued)

A summary of the Company’s stock compensation #gtwith respect to fiscal 2006 follows:
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Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Exercise Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Price Term Value
(000s) ($000s)
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 9,374 $29.2¢
Granted 295 35.1E
Exercised (1,57¢) 22.07
Cancelled or expired (383) 31.92
Outstanding at December 30, 2006 7,70€  $30.7¢ 6.37 $51,97¢
Vested at December 30, 2006 and expected to
vest 7,50¢  $30.7: 6.33 $51,29:
Exercisable at December 30, 2006 4,965  $29.2: 5.66 $42,11°¢
Weighted-
Weighted-
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
Restricted Stock Units Shares Price Vesting Term Value
(000s) ($000s)
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 1,151 $0.00
Granted 1,01z 0.00
Issued (137) 0.00
Cancelled or expired (86) 0.00
Outstanding at December 30, 2006 1,941 $0.00 2.34 $67,272
Outstanding at December 30, 2006 and
expected to vest 1,72¢ $0.00 2.2€ $59,79C
Exercisable at December 30, 2006 — $ — — $ =
A summary of the Company's stock compensation ictivith respect to fiscal 2004 and 2005 follows:
Weighted-
Average
Options Exercise
and Awards Price
(000s)
Outstanding at January 3, 20 8,99C $23.77
Grantec 1,94¢ 39.5C
Exercisec (797) 12.9C
Cancellec (161) 33.9¢
Outstanding at January 1, 20 9,981 27.54
Options grante: 1,63C 31.0¢
Awards grante( 1,154 —
Exercisec (1,209) 14.3¢
Options cancelle (1,02¢) 33.2¢
Awards cancelle (3) —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 10,52¢ $29.2:
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8. Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compengan (Continued)

The following summarizes the Company’s weightedrage fair value at the date of grant:

Year Ended
December 30 December 31 January 1,
2006 2005 2005
Per grant of stock options $19.7¢ $15.1¢ $22.41
Per grant of RSUs $37.5€ $32.17 $ —

The following summarizes the Company’s stock-bgsganent and stock option values (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
January 1,
2006 2005 2005
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised $41,44C $22,491 $26,31¢
Intrinsic value of RSUs that vested $ 4,652 $ — $ —
Grant date fair value of RSUs that vested $ 4,39¢ $ — $ —

The Company had approximately $114 million of tatatecognized compensation costs related to stp&rs and RSUs at
December 30, 2006 that are expected to be recatjpizr a weighted-average period of 2.3 years.&vere no significant stock
compensation costs capitalized into assets as ofkeer 30, 2006.

The Company received cash of $34.8 million foreékercise of stock options during fiscal 2006. Casl not used to settle any equity
instruments previously granted. The Company isshases from the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan resgpoa the exercise of stock options and
vesting of RSUs. The Company does not currentlyeekip repurchase shares from any source to satigfy obligation under the Plan.

The following are the stock-based compensationsaestognized in the Company’s consolidated stat&syincome (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
January 1,
2006 2005 2005
Cost of revenues $ 904 $ 98 $ 90
Research and development 19,298 2,802 3,13¢
Selling, general and administrative 19,198 4,374 1,00€
Total decrease in income before income taxes 39,40C 7,274 4,237
Decrease in provision for income taxes (6,983) (2,626) (1,88%)
Decrease in net income $32,417% $ 4,64¢ $ 2,354
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8. Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compengan (Continued)

As discussed above, results for prior periods metdeen restated to reflect the effects of impleting SFAS 123R. The following table
illustrates the effect on net income and net incpereshare if the Company had applied the fairevafcognition provisions of SFAS 123 to
stock options granted under the Company’s stockomtians for fiscal 2005 and 2004. For purposeasisfpro forma disclosure, the value of
the stock options was estimated using a Black-&shaption-pricing formula and amortized to expemger the options’ vesting periods (in
thousands, except per-share amounts):

Year End
December 31 January 1,
2005 2005

Net incom—as reported $ 47,50¢ $ 76,69:
Total stock-based compensation cost, net of rekabeéffects included in

the determination of net income as reported 4,648 2,354
The stock-based employee compensation cost, metatéd tax effects,

that would have been included in the determinationet income if the

fair value based method had been applied to alt@sva (30,699) (29,99¢)
Pro forma net income $ 21,461 $ 49,04¢
Net income per shar

Basic—as reported $ 089 $ 14¢

Basic—pro forma $ 040 $ 095

Diluted—as reported $ 08 $ 1.3¢

Diluted—pro forma $ 039 $ 0.9C

9. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a defined contribution or(KpPlan for its qualified U.S. employees. Partérifs may contribute a percentage of
their compensation on a pre-tax basis, subjectni@@mum annual contribution imposed by the InteRevenue Code. The Company may
make discretionary matching contributions as weldliscretionary profit-sharing contributions to #1(k) Plan. The Company’s contributions
to the 401(k) Plan vest over four years at a raf2586 per year. The Company contributed $2.4 nrilli0.7 million and $0.7 million to the 401
(k) Plan during fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, redpelst The increase in fiscal 2006 is primarily doehe Company increasing the amount of
matching contributions per employee in 2006.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases its facilities under operatagée agreements that expire at various dates th&Qi. Some of these arrangements
contain renewal options and require the Comparpatotaxes, insurance and maintenance costs.

Rent expense under operating leases was $5.8 miiti4 million and $3.0 million for fiscal 20060@5 and 2004, respectively.
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10. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
The minimum annual future rentals under the terfithese leases at December 30, 2006 are as fo(lawisousands):

Fiscal Yeal

2007 $ 7,182
2008 6,737
2009 5,981
2010 3,476
2011 2,895
Thereafter 3,619
Total minimum lease paymer 29,89C
Minimum sublease rental income (7,289
Total net minimum lease paymel $22,601

The Company has an accrual of $2.3 million at Ddam30, 2006 for the present value of estimatearéudbligations for non-cancelable
lease payments (net of estimated sublease incata@d to vacating certain leased facilities. SeeeN.3, “Headquarter Relocation Costs” for
further information.

In March 2006, the Company entered into an opegdéase agreement and a related participation agnete(collectively, the “lease”) for
a facility in Austin, Texas for its corporate headders. The lease has a term of seven years. adgerbnt for the term of the lease is an am
equal to the interest accruing on $44.3 milliodHd basis points over the three-month LIBOR (whichuld be approximately $17.9 million
over the remaining term assuming LIBOR average8%.8uring such term).

The Company has granted certain rights and reméaligae lessor in the event of certain defaultsiuding the right to terminate the lea
to bring suit to collect damages, and to compel@bepany to purchase the facility. The lease costather customary representations,
warranties, obligations, conditions, indemnificatjgrovisions and termination provisions, includoayenants that the Company shall maintain
unencumbered cash and highly-rated skemra investments of at least $75 million and aorafifunded debt to earnings before interest exp
income taxes, depreciation, amortization, leaseers@ and other non-cash charges (EBITDAR) ovefotleprior fiscal quarters of no greater
than 1.5 to 1. As of December 30, 2006, the Cometigves it was in compliance with all covenarftthe lease.

During the term of the lease, the Company has agoomg option to purchase the building for a tgtatchase price of approximately
$44.3 million. Alternatively, the Company can catise property to be sold to third parties proviitad not in default under the lease. The
Company is contingently liable for the guarantesgidual value associated with this property inghent that the net sale proceeds are less
the original financed cost of the facility. The Coamy is contingently liable for the residual vafnerantee associated with the lease of
approximately $35.3 million. To the extent that tted proceeds generated from the sale of thetfatdlia third party exceed $9.0 million, the
Company would have the right to receive (a) sulistiy all of such excess proceeds if the sale cxpuior to the end of the term or (b) up to
approximately $35.3 million of such excess procetthe sale occurs after the end of the term.

F-24




Silicon Laboratories Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
December 30, 2006

10. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45, “@mor’'s Accounting and Disclosure RequirementsGaarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” the Comgatgrmined that the fair value associated withgtieranteed residual value was $1.0
million. The amount was recorded in “Other assed$, and “Long-term obligations and other liab@#i’ in the consolidated balance sheets and
is being amortized over the term of the lease.

The Company is required to periodically evaluateehkpected fair value of the facility at the endref lease term. If the Company
determines that it is estimable and probable tiaekpected fair value will be less than $44.3iamillit will ratably accrue the loss up to a
maximum of approximately $35.3 million over the @@ning lease term. As of December 30, 2006, the g2my has determined that a loss
contingency accrual is not required.

Securities Litigation

On December 6, 2001, a class action complaintifdations of U.S. federal securities laws was filedhe United States District Court 1
the Southern District of New York against the Compdour officers individually and the three invesnt banking firms who served as
representatives of the underwriters in connectiah the Company’s initial public offering of commatock. The Consolidated Amended
Complaint alleges that the registration statemadt@ospectus for the Company’s initial public offg did not disclose that (1) the
underwriters solicited and received additional,emsive and undisclosed commissions from certaiesitors, and (2) the underwriters had
agreed to allocate shares of the offering in exghdar a commitment from the customers to purclaasitional shares in the aftermarket at
pre-determined higher prices. The action seeks damim an unspecified amount and is being cooreéhaith approximately 300 other nearly
identical actions filed against other companieso@rt order dated October 9, 2002 dismissed withboejudice the four officers of the
Company who had been named individually. On Felgriliy 2003, the Court denied the motion to disrfiescomplaint against the Company.
On October 13, 2004, the Court certified a classixrof the approximately 300 other nearly idertagtions (the “focus cases”) and noted that
the decision is intended to provide strong guidancal parties regarding class certification ie temaining cases. The Underwriter Defend
appealed the decision and the Second Circuit va¢heeDistrict Court’s decision granting class ifiedtion in those six cases on December 5,
2006. Plaintiffs have not yet moved to certify asd in the Silicon Laboratories case.

The Company has approved a settlement agreemenmékateld agreements which set forth the termssetdeement between the Compa
the plaintiff class and the vast majority of theertapproximately 300 issuer defendants. It isearcivhat impact the Second Circuit’s decision
vacating class certification in the six focus cas#ékshave on the settlement, which has not yetbféally approved by the Court. On
December 14, 2006, Judge Scheindlin held a hedpiiagntiffs informed the Court that they plannedite a petition for rehearing and reheat
by the full court. The Court stayed all proceedirigsluding a decision on final approval of thetlesbtent and any amendments of the
complaints, pending the Second Circuit’s decisinrPtaintiffs’ petition for rehearing. Plaintiffsléd the petition for rehearing and rehearing by
the full court on January 5, 2007.
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10. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Pursuant to the settlement and related agreenmniktits,settlement receives final approval by thei€ahe settlement provides for a
release of the Company and the individual defersdfnmtthe conduct alleged in the action to be wfoh@he Company would agree to
undertake certain responsibilities, including agrg¢o assign away, not assert, or release ceptatential claims the Company may have
against its underwriters. The settlement agreementprovides a guaranteed recovery of $1 bill@plaintiffs for the cases relating to all of
the approximately 300 issuers. To the extent tiaunderwriter defendants settle all of the cageatfleast $1 billion, no payment will be
required under the issuers’ settlement agreementhd extent that the underwriter defendants sfttleess than $1 billion, the issuers are
required to make up the difference. On April 200@0JPMorgan Chase and the Plaintiffs reachedlarpnary agreement to settle for $425
million. The JPMorgan Chase preliminary agreemest ot yet been approved by the Court. In an amentito the issuers’ settlement
agreement, the issuers’ insurers agreed that théod@an Chase preliminary agreement, if approveli only offset the insurers’ obligation to
cover the remainder of the Plaintiffs’ guarante&dibion recovery by 50% of the value of the JPriybin Chase settlement, or $212.5 million.
Therefore, if the JP Morgan Chase preliminary ages# to settle is preliminarily and then finallypapved by the Court, then the maximum
amount that the issuers’ insurers will be potelytigble for is $787.5 million. However, futuretdements with other underwriters would
further reduce that liability. It is unclear whatpact the Second Circustdecision vacating class certification in the #ocases will have on ti
JP Morgan Chase preliminary agreement.

The Company anticipates that its potential finalngidigation to plaintiffs pursuant to the termstbé issuers’ settlement agreement and
related agreements will be covered by existingrasce. The Company is not aware of any materiatdiions on the expected recovery of any
potential financial obligation to plaintiffs fronsiinsurance carriers. Its carriers appear to best) and the Company is not aware of any
uncertainties as to the legal sufficiency of aruragsce claim with respect to any recovery by piéistTherefore, the Company does not expect
that the settlement would involve any material pagtrby it. Furthermore, even if the Company’s iasiwe was unavailable due to insurer
insolvency or otherwise, the Company expects teahaximum financial obligation to plaintiffs puesu to the settlement agreement would be
approximately $3.4 million. However, if the JPMong@hase settlement is preliminarily and then finalpproved, the Company’s maximum
financial obligation to the plaintiffs pursuantttee settlement agreement would be approximately s@lion.

There is no assurance that the Court will grargtifapproval to the issuers’ settlement. If thelsetent agreement is not approved and the
Company is found liable, the Company is unablestoveate or predict the potential damages that nbighawarded, whether such damages
would be greater than the Company'’s insurance egegror whether the outcome would have a mataeniphct on the Company’s results of
operations or financial position.
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10. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Patent and Copyright Infringement Litigatit

On December 14, 2005, Power-One, Inc. (Power-GnBglaware corporation, filed a lawsuit against@oenpany, in the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Texasalhall Division, alleging willful infringement dfnited States Patents 6,936,999 and
6,949,916, and of patent applications Nos. 2008062A1 and 2004/0093533A1. On July 21, 2006, thégzaentered into a settlement
agreement pursuant to which Power-One withdrewatsuit without prejudice. The Company did not makg financial payments related to
this settlement and the settlement will not haweagerial impact on the Compasyresults of operations or financial position. SHdbe partie:
fail to fulfill their obligations under the settlemt, the lawsuit may be reinstated.

On December 14, 2006, Analog Devices, Inc. (An&degices), a Massachusetts corporation, filed aldévegainst the Company, in the
United States District Court in the District of Mashusetts, alleging infringement of United St&atents 7,075,329, 6,262,600, 6,525,566,
6,903,578 and 6,873,065, and copyright infringenoémertain Analog Devices datasheets. The lawsldtes to the Company’s Si843x and
Si844x family of digital isolator products and gléss that the infringement was and continues toibiilvAt this time, the Company cannot
estimate the outcome of this matter or resultingriicial impact to it, if any.

Other Litigation

The Company is involved in various other legal pextings that have arisen in the normal course sibas. While the ultimate results of
these matters cannot be predicted with certaihtyompany does not expect them to have a maseliarse effect on the consolidated
financial position or results of operations.
11. Income Taxes

Significant components of the provision for incotares attributable to continuing operations arfobews (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
January 1,
2006 2005 2005

Current:

Domestic $17,96¢ $21,11C $38,92¢

International 2,071 820 917

Total Current 20,037 21,93C 39,842
Deferred:

Domestic (8,284) (4,132 (4,449)

Internationa (179) 337 (510)

Total Deferrec (8,463) (3,795) (4,959)

$11,57¢ $18,13¢ $34,88¢
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11. Income Taxes (Continued)

The Company’s provision for income taxes diffemnfrthe expected tax expense amount computed byiagphe statutory federal
income tax rate to income before income taxesrasut of the following:

Year Ended

December 30 December 31  January 1,
2006 2005 2005

Federal statutory rate 35.C% 35.0% 35.0%
Stock compensatic 16.1 — —
Foreign tax rate benel (12.1) (5.7) —
Tax-exempt interest incon (10.2) (3.3 (0.8
Research and development tax cre (9.2) (4.6) (3.0)
Acquired & ir-process research and developn 2.5 7.3 —
State tax expens 2.1 0.9 1.0
Other 2.8 (2.0 (0.9

27.1% 27.6% 31.3%

Income before income taxes included approximat2ly.& million, $19.0 million, and $1.9 million reéat to foreign operations in fiscal
2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

At the end of fiscal 2006, undistributed earningthe Company’s foreign subsidiaries of approxirha$2.8 million are considered
permanently reinvested. Accordingly, no provision f.S. federal and state income taxes has been.rbadermination of the amount of the
unrecognized deferred tax liability on these unt&diearnings is not practicable.

Significant components of the Company’s deferre@deas of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 280isdollows (in thousands):

December 30 December 31

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 6,31F $ 6,55¢
Stock compensatic 5,920 594
Depreciable asse 19,277 —
Research and development tax credit carryforw 2,480 2,062
Reserves and allowanc 492 1,193
Deferred income on shipments to distribut 4,473 8,063
Accrued liabilities and other 3,503 2,309
42,46C 20,78C
Less: Valuation allowance (337) (517)
42,123 20,263
Deferred tax liabilities
Acquired intangible: 7,699 3,973
Depreciable asse — 621
Long term obligations for tax purpos 15,167 —
Prepaid expenses and other 690 615
23,55€ 5,209
Net deferred tax assets $18,567 $15,05¢
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11. Income Taxes (Continued)

As of December 30, 2006, the Company had fedetadperating loss and research and developmentt @aayforwards of approximate
$17.2 million and $0.6 million, respectively, aseault of the Cygnal Integrated Products and SiliAGIKE acquisitions. These
carryforwards expire in fiscal years 2019 throug2%2 Recognition of these loss and credit carryéwds is subject to an annual limit, which
may cause them to expire before they are usedsdalf2005, the Company eliminated $3.1 milliortraf remaining valuation allowance relg
to Cygnal net operating loss carryforwards baseilsoexpectations of the future realizability oéthet operating loss carryforwards. The
elimination of this valuation allowance plus otlagljustments reduced goodwill by $2.9 million.

The Company also had state research and develommeetit carryforwards of approximately $3.2 milliarhich expire in fiscal years 20
through 2026 and are projected to be utilized ajatate income taxes.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeEtemporary differences between the carrying vahfesssets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the values used for incameurposes. Upon the acquisition of Silembia iryM&06 and StackCom in July 2006, the
Company recorded net deferred tax liabilities giragimately $3.2 million and $0.7 million, respey, due to differences between book and
tax bases of acquired assets and assumed liadilifigon the acquisition of Silicon MAGIKE in Auguad05, the Company recorded a net
deferred tax liability of approximately $0.7 milialue to differences between book and tax basascfired assets and assumed liabilities.

The Companys operations in Singapore are subject to reducerhtas through 2019, as long as certain condittwasnet. The income t
benefit reflected in earnings was approximatel $4dillion (representing $0.07 per diluted share2@®6, and $3.2 million (representing $0.06
per diluted share) in 2005.

The examination of the Company’s 2002 and 2003réddecome tax returns by the U.S. Internal ReveBerrice was completed in fiscal
2006 and there was no material adverse effect@@tmpany’s financial statements. In fiscal 2066,2003, 2004 and 2005 corporate income
tax returns for the Company’s operations in Frameee selected for audit and are currently undeméxation by the French tax authorities.
The Companys provision for income taxes includes amounts ideeito satisfy income tax assessments that mait fesm the examination ¢
the Company’s corporate tax returns that have Eeghwith federal, state or foreign taxing authi@s. The Company establishes tax reserves
when it determines that the related tax contingenegts the probable and estimable criteria of SRAS5, “Accounting for Contingencies.”
The amounts ultimately paid upon resolution of ¢hesntingencies could be materially different frita amounts included in the provision
income taxes and result in additional tax benef#xpense depending on the ultimate outcome.

12. Segment Information

The Company has one operating segment, mixed-ségradbg intensive ICs, consisting of numerous pcbdreas. The Company’s chief
operating decision maker is considered to be thef@xecutive Officer. The chief operating decisioaker allocates resources and assesses
performance of the business and other activitieseabperating segment level.
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12. Segment Information (Continued)

Revenue is attributed to a geographic area bas#teoznd customer’s shipped-to location. The foif@wsummarizes the Company’s
revenue by geographic area (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 30 December 31
January 1,
2006 2005 2005
United States $ 49,23: $ 39,812 $ 51,591
China 104,357 93,42¢ 46,55:
Taiwan 96,921 71,35¢ 70,79¢
South Korea 87,66: 71,711 129,17¢
Rest of world 126,42 149,38t 158,10:
Total $464,597 $425,68¢  $456,22¢
The following summarizes the Company’s long-livedets by geographic area (in thousands):
Year Ended
December 30 December 31
2006 2005

United States $142,71¢ $125,03¢

France 24,971 5,06¢€

Rest of world 7,052 1,747

Total $174,73¢ $131,84¢

The following summarizes the Company’s revenuetimgpct category (in thousands):
Year Ended
December 30 December 31
January 1,
2006 2005 2005

Broad-based mixed-signal $258,13¢ $237,101  $227,46¢
Mobile handset 206,45¢ 188,58¢ 228,75¢
Total $464,591 $425,68¢  $456,22¢

13. Headquarter Relocation Costs

In fiscal 2006, the Company relocated most of itst#n, Texas employees to a new corporate headgeahh accordance with SFAS 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Digad Activities”, the Company recorded a charge 20$nillion related to vacating certain

leased facilities, consisting of the following:

* $2.4 million for the present value of estimatedifatobligations for non-cancelable lease paymemsdf estimated sublease income)
and brokerage commissions related to subleasingateted facilities. In September 2006, the Compantgred into a sublease
agreement for the vacated leased facilities fordneaining lease period.

» $0.6 million for impairment of leasehold improventeand furniture and fixtures.

The charges were recorded in the “selling, gerardladministrativeline of the consolidated statements of income. fEmeaining accru:
balance for the vacated facilities was $2.3 millésnof December 30, 2006.
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Quarterly financial information for fiscal 2006 aB605 is as follows. All quarterly periods reportezte had thirteen weeks (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Fiscal 2006
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues $111,012 $11554( $123,50¢ $114,54(
Cost of revenue 51,778 52,142 52,99¢ 51,30C
Gross profit 59,234 63,39¢ 70,50¢ 63,24C
Operating expense
Research and developmt 32,41¢ 31,264 30,467 27,557
Selling, general and administrati 24,18tE 27,30€(1) 26,162 24,702
In-process research and developn — 600 2,600 —
Operating expense 56,604 59,172 59,23C 52,25¢
Operating incom: 2,630 4,226 11,27¢ 10,981
Other income (expense
Interest incomt 3,394 3,525 3,623 3,202
Interest expens (237) (236) (225) (175)
Other income (expense), r 400 53 45 247
Income before income tax 6,187 7,568 14,721 14,255
Provision for income taxe 964 2,834 4,584 3,191
Net income $ 5228 $ 4734 $ 10,137 $ 11,064
Net income per shar
Basic $ 010 $ 008 $ 018 $ 0.20
Diluted $ 009 $ 008 $ 018 $ 0.19
Weightec-average common shares outstand
Basic 54,715 55,72& 55,842 55,06€
Diluted 56,10¢ 57,151 57,85¢ 57,65€
Fiscal 2005
Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue! $109,85¢ $103,91: $107,15¢ $104,76¢
Cost of revenues 49,49¢ 47,26¢ 48,57¢€ 48,56C
Gross profit 60,357 56,644 58,58C 56,204
Operating expense
Research and developme 23,692 36,604(2) 21,374 19,552
Selling, general and administrative 18,89€ 17,48C 19,297(3)  16,87¢
Operating expenst 42,59C 54,084 40,671 36,431
Operating incom 17,767 2,560 17,90¢ 19,773
Other income (expense
Interest income 2,743 2,138 1,992 1,412
Interest expens (191) (30) (45) (56)
Other income (expense), r (91) (48) (178) (15)
Income before income tax 20,228 4,620 19,678 21,114
Provision for income taxe 4,965 5,365 4,064 3,741
Net income (loss $ 15265 $ (745 $ 15,614 § 17,37:
Net income (loss) per shai
Basic $ 028 $ (001 $ 029 $ 0.33
Diluted $ 027 $ (001) $ 028 $ 031
Weighte-average common shares outstand
Basic 54,21C 53,77C 53,14¢ 52,46€
Diluted 56,20€ 53,77C 55,027 55,36E

(1) Includes $3.0 million related to the relocatioroof corporate headquarters.
(2) Includes $13.7 million for acquired research andetispment related to our acquisition of Silicon MIKE.
(3) Includes $1.9 million in connection with certain difications of non-employee stock compensation.




The following is a list of the registrant’s subsides:

Silicon Laboratories France

Silembia SAS

Silicon Laboratories Gmbl

Silicon Laboratories Asia Pacific, Limite
Silicon Labs Technology India Private Limit
Silicon Laboratories Italy S.r.

Silicon Laboratories Y.K

SLP— Silicon Laboratories, Unipessoal, L
Silicon Laboratories International Pte. L
Silicon Laboratories Sweden A

Silicon Laboratories UK Limite:

Silicon Labs Isolation, Inc

StackCom, Inc

Silicon Laboratories Technology, LL
Silicon Labs CP, Inc

Silicon Labs HV, Inc

Subsidiaries of the Company
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France

France

Germany

Hong Kong

India

Italy

Japar

Portugal
Singapore
Sweder

United Kingdom
State of Californic
State of Californic
State of Delawar
State of Delawar
State of Texa




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRhgistration Statements (Form S-8 No. 333-39538;45682, 333-60794, 333-83844, 333-
104771, 333-112324, 333-122845, and 333-131700)ofeports dated February 6, 2007, with respetttdaonsolidated financial statements
of Silicon Laboratories Inc., Silicon Laboratories. management’s assessment of the effectiverféstemal control over financial reporting,

and the effectiveness of internal control overiiicial reporting of Silicon Laboratories Inc. inckalin the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the
year ended December 30, 20

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Austin, Texas
February 6, 2007




Exhibit 31.1

Certification to the Securities and Exchange Corsiais
by Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer, as reqdil®y Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Necip Sayiner, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidamboratories Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lightafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingldg@ae controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1%gr the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including itmesolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetgorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeregsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldg&ire controls and procedures and presentedsimgjport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regittsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (tiggsteant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofaammual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and Mealisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditor&lahe audit committee of registramtoard of directors (or persons perforn
the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 6, 20C

/s/ Necip Sayine

Necip Sayine
President an

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification to the Securities and Exchange Corsiais
by Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer, as reqdit®gy Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, William G. Bock, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silidamboratories Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lightafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingldg@ae controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1%gr the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including itmesolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withase entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is
being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahetgorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeregsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldg&ire controls and procedures and presentedsimgjport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures as of the end of thegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regittsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (tiggsteant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case ofaammual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial
reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and Mealisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditor&lahe audit committee of registramtoard of directors (or persons perforn
the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 6, 20C

/s/ William G. Bock

William G. Bock

Senior Vice President ar
Chief Financial Office!
(Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieihancial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as created by Seefi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, each oltdersigned officers of Silicon
Laboratories Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifibat:

(i) the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10fkkhe Company for the fiscal year ended DecembeRB06 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Repdutlyy complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r Section 15(d), as applicable, of
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(i) the information contained in the Report fgigresents, in all material respects, the finarmigdition and results of operations of the
Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities Exchange Commissiais staff upon request.

Dated: February 6, 2007

/s/ Necip Sayine
Necip Sayine
President an

Chief Executive Office

/s/ William G. Bock
William G. Bock

Senior Vice President ar
Chief Financial Office!




